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Our Vision
Together we establish Swiber as a world class offshore oil and gas
service organisation by 2012.
Our Mission
To consistently outperform ourselves by maintaining and
achieving an above average return on investment for our
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stakeholders measured in terms of ROE, EPS, revenue growth,
operating profit and market capitalisation.
Our TRADEmark Values
Trust: We are trusted for our integrity, honesty, reliability,
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Respect: We respect and value the views of each other.
We respect the laws of the countries we operate in and the
confidentiality of information provided by our clients and
employees. We win as a team.
Affirmation: We affirm and recognise the contributions made
by our partners, clients and employees to the success of our
business. We value our employees, encourage their contributions
and develop them to their fullest potential. We practice the 101%
principle in affirmation – finding the 1% we can affirm, and giving
it 100% of our attention.
Determination: We are determined to succeed and will always
rise up to any challenges and be known for our resolve in solving
any problem faced by us or our clients and partners.
Excellence: We excel in everything that we do and are committed
to delivering jobs of the highest quality that far exceed our
customers’ expectations.
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R AT I ONA L E

We are expanding our Core Business;
Our armada of Marine Assets;
Our pool of talented People;
And the Markets we operate in.
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This is our strategy for 2008 and beyond.
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SWI BER I S EXPAN DING O UR HO RIZO N S .

C ORPORATE PROF I L E
Swiber is a niche service provider to the offshore oil and gas industry offering a wide and integrated
range of offshore EPCIC, marine support and drilling services across the Asia Pacific and the
Middle East.
Since our foundation in 1996, Swiber has been dedicated to transforming our company into a world
class leader in the offshore oil and gas industry. Our efforts have paid off. Today, Swiber is a billion-dollar
company with an eminent position among global offshore oil and gas engineering and construction
companies.
With an extensive and growing fleet of vessels and more than 500 employees in strategically located
offices in the region, the Swiber name is synonymous with excellence, safety, innovation and value among
our customers.

CHANGE FO R GO O D
A philosophy that is a part of our corporate DNA
‘Cause No Harm’ is the core philosophy that Swiber
embraces unconditionally. We see it as the linchpin for all
aspects of our organisation, encompassing our business
conduct, ethics, daily operations and our overall corporate
strategy.
The essence behind our philosophy is simple: Everything
that we do will have, as our first consideration, the idea
that it must Cause No Harm.
• Cause No Harm to OURSELVES as individuals
• Cause No Harm to OTHERS
• Cause No Harm to OUR EQUIPMENT
AND MATERIALS
• Cause No Harm to OTHERS’ ASSETS
• Cause No Harm to THE ENVIRONMENT
• Cause No Harm to THE PLANET as a whole
• Cause No Harm to FUTURE GENERATIONS
Together with our TRADEmark core values of Trust,
Respect, Affirmation, Determination and Excellence,
Cause No Harm forms the basis of our Code of Business
Conduct and Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
policies, defining how we interact with our stakeholders
- who include employees, customers, shareholders,
vendors, government agencies, industry colleagues, the
environment and the community as a whole - with the
highest standards of ethics, integrity and responsibility.
For more information on our Code of Business Conduct
and HSE policies, please visit our website www.swiber.
com

Treating people as they need to be treated
Harm as a phenomenon is caused when individuals do not
fully understand themselves and/or others. This lack of
understanding inevitably leads to sense of separateness and
the justification to cause harm.
Change for Good is a tool that Swiber is using and developing
to help enhance understanding between individuals, and to
further imprint our Cause No Harm philosophy into Swiber’s
DNA.
Q: What is Change for Good all about?
A: Change for Good – treating people as they need to be
treated – is a process whereby we determine four key
personality characteristics, which require certain styles
of communications in order to garner cooperation and
understanding.
Q: What are the benefits that will arise from it?
A: The benefits of Change for Good are that people
will understand not only their own needs, but also
other people’s needs. This will lead to better overall
understanding and greater harmony. A heightened
willingness will naturally follow, along with the reasoning
behind why some people behave differently to others in
certain circumstances.
Q: How does it fit into the overall HSE policy / Cause No
Harm concept?
A: Change for Good complements Cause No Harm by giving
people a useful tool to be able to express themselves
and garner support for Cause No Harm principles and
HSE issues
Q: What are the various steps involved in implementing
the Change For Good philosophy into the
organisation? Is it a one time or continuous process?
A: The steps involved in the implementation, which is an
ongoing process, involve:
1. Conducting a short questionnaire
2. Verifying the results of the questionnaire
3. Conducting the training on the four characteristics
and various methods of communication
4. Rolling out the process and integrating into our
everyday work activities

O U R 3 BU SI NESS AREAS
Swiber delivers innovation and value to our customers throughout the full spectrum of an
offshore oil and gas project from exploration to production and customers trust in our ability
to plan and execute a project from start to completion. Swiber’s fully integrated business
model, where our offshore marine fleet is utilised for our offshore EPCIC activities, presents
enhanced efficiency, timely project delivery and competitive pricing to our customers. Our
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core segments are classified under three main business units comprising:

Offshore
Construction
Services
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Swiber provides a full suite of Offshore Construction Services encompassing
Engineering, Procurement, Construction, Installation and Commissioning (EPCIC)
services. Through our team of highly experienced engineers and an extensive fleet
of modern support and construction vessels, we deliver integrated and innovative
solutions to a wide and diverse range of projects even in the most challenging
offshore environment.

Offshore
Support Services

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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Swiber offers a spread of Offshore Support Services that are highly complementary
to our offshore EPCIC business. These services include extensive marine offshore
services, yard facilities with a comprehensive and growing capability for ship
repair, ship conversion and construction; and a widening range of engineering
design, fabrication and offshore engineering services. This line of business is mainly
operated through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Kreuz International.

Offshore
Drilling Services

particularly with the increasing extension of oil and gas activities into the deepwater
and ultra-deepwater areas of the Asia Pacific region. We have a highly experienced
drilling team headed by one of the world’s most experienced deepwater drillers,
and a fleet of state-of-the-art construction vessels. This line of business is primarily
operated through our subsidiary, Swiber Offshore Drilling.
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the region. Our offshore drilling business is a growing part of Swiber’s business,
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Swiber provides Offshore Drilling Services to the offshore oil and gas industry in

The Offshore
World of Swiber
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10/11
As a niche services provider to the offshore oil and gas industry, Swiber has
the capability to serve our oil and gas customers at each and every stage of an
offshore oil and gas project, from exploration to production. We take pride in
delivering comprehensive, turnkey construction, support and drilling services to
our customers.

E X PA N D I N G H O R I Z O N S

AMONG THE FIRST TO REACH NEW DEPTHS

PROPELLING OUR GROWTH IN 2008 AND BEYOND

Always ahead of the pack in responding to market
opportunities, Swiber has identified subsea and
deepwater activities to drive our growth trajectory in 2010
and beyond. The rationale behind our strategy is simple
- with most of the world’s offshore ‘easy oil’ found, oil and
gas players are increasingly looking for new discoveries.

Utilising state-of-the-art technologies, Swiber‘s Equatorial
Driller is a cost effective solution for efficient deep water
drilling in benign weather environments. The vessel is
expected to be delivered in the first quarter of 2010.

Recent market statistics predict that:
• Deepwater oil production currently accounts for almost
15% of total offshore production but is expected to
account for around 20% of offshore production by
20111.
• Deepwater oil and gas industry is set for continued
growth through to 2012, with over 30% growth forecast
for the 2008-2012 period compared with the previous
five years1.
• By 2012, nearly US$25 billion will be spent annually in
deepwater capital expenditure.

Specifications:
• Overall length: 161 m (528 ft) / Hull width: 31 m
(102 ft) / Hull depth: 10 m (33 ft)
• Water depth: Subsea BOP: up to 6,000 ft and Surface
BOP: up to 8,500 ft
• Max Displacement: 26,200 T / Max Variable Load:
14,700 T
• Accommodations for 136 men
With a barge-shaped hull instead of a semi-sub or drill
ship, the vessel is faster to build and can be constructed
by many yards. Deck space and loading capacity will also
be larger for the same amount of steel (lowest Capex).
Furthermore, model tests have proven that operability is
very good in the targeted environment.

1

The World Deepwater Market Report 2008 - 2012, Douglas - Westwood
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Our New
Growth Engine
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The Equatorial Driller:

E X PA N D I N G H O R I Z O N S

INVESTMENTS
Modern and well-equipped, our current fleet of 28 marine assets
is one of Swiber’s critical success factors that impart improved
efficiencies, timely project delivery and competitive pricing to our
customers. Swiber will further hone our business edge by continuing
to invest in new, technologically sophisticated construction and
support vessels.
The vessels, which will be delivered between 2008 and 2010,
include:
• Two pipelay barges
• One 4,180 MT Derrick crane barge
• One Derrick pipelay barge
• One drilling vessel, the Equatorial Driller
• Two accommodation barges
• Two 78-metre DP2 Subsea Support vessels
• Two 70-metre 10,000 BHP deepwater AHTS
• Two units of SAT diving systems
To support the pace of our business growth, we have a targeted
investment plan of 47 vessels comprising 34 support vessels and
13 construction vessels by 2010.
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CHARTING FUTURE GROWTH THROUGH VESSEL
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New
Marine Assets

A N OVERVI EW: OU R EXIS T ING FLEET AN D EXPECT ED ADD ITION S

Number of vessels in operation as at the end of each period
Offshore Vessels

FY05

FY06

FY07

FY08F

FY09F

FY10F

Cargo / Flat Top Barge

3

4

10

10

10

10

Utility / Towing Boat

3

4

4

7

7

7

AHTS / AHT

2

2

9

11

15

15

Subsea Support Vessels
TOTAL

2
8

10

23

28

32

34

FY05

FY06

FY07

FY08F

FY09F

FY10F

Jackup Barge

1

1

1

1

Pipelay Barge

1

2

3

3

Derrick Pipelay Barge

1

1

1

Accommodation Barge

3

3

3

Construction Vessels

Submersible Barge

2

2

2

2

Derrick Crane Barge

1

1

2

2

Deepwater Drilling Vessel

1

TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

8

10

5

10

12

13

28

38

44

47

Capacity

Stake

1.

Swiber Falcon

Towing

3200BHP

100%

2.

Swiber Hawk

Towing

3200BHP

100%

3.

To be named

AHT

5000BHP

100%

4.

Swiber Torunn

AHTS

5000BHP

Lease

5.

Swiber Ada

AHTS

5000BHP

Lease

6.

Swiber Oslo

AHTS

5000BHP

Lease

7.

Swiber Sanderfjord

AHTS

5000BHP

Lease

8.

Swiwar Victor

AHTS

5150BHP

50%

9.

To be named

AHTS

10800BHP

Lease

10.

To be named

AHTS

10800BHP

Lease

11.

To be named

SSV

78m

100%

12.

To be named

SSV

78m

100%

13.

Swiber Concorde

Pipelay Barge

113m

Lease

14.

To be named

Pipelay Barge

111m

100%

15.

Swiber Chai

Derrick Pipelay Barge

120m

100%

16.

To be named

Derrick Crane Barge

4180 MT

100%

17.

Swiber Victorious

Accommodation Barge

300 men

100%

18.

To be named

Accommodation Barge

180 men

100%

19.

Equatorial Driller

Drilling Vessel

161m

90%
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Vessels to be delivered
between 2008-2010

A C HI EVEMENTS I N 2 007

In last year’s annual report, Swiber charted out the direction of our future, identifying investments in resources, new designs
and technologies, and new markets as instruments to grow our business. We have been successful in delivering results as
evident from our achievements over the last 12 months.

E X PA N D I N G H O R I Z O N S

1

Winning projects totaling over US$300 million
•

Jan: US$14.0 million charter contract in India

•

Feb: US$146.6 million Brunei Shell offshore installation
project in the Territory

•

May: US$21.3 million offshore installation project in

2

Enhancing our presence, through various means, in
existing and new markets
•

Apr: Establishes branch office in Brunei

•

Jun: Inks MOU in UAE to explore investment

opportunities to expand offshore EPCIC activities

Indonesia
•

Jun: US$31.0 million installation project in Malaysia

•

Jul: US$12.0 million installation contract in Malaysia

•

Nov: Clinches a US$25.0 million maiden offshore
drilling contract for wells in the Gulf of Thailand for

Pakistan
•

Jul: Incorporates new subsidiary, Swiber Offshore
India Private Limited in Mumbai, India

•

Aug: Acquires North Shipyard (Pte) Ltd for S$10.3

NuCoastal (Thailand) Limited in the same month

million as a marine base for repair and maintenance

we established our offshore drilling business; and

and conversion and construction of vessels

US$31.0 million platform installation contract in
•

into the Gulf Region, the Middle East including

•

Sep: Creates a new Swiber-owned brand, Kreuz;

Indonesia

Renames North Shipyard to Kreuz Shipbuilding

Dec: Extends Brunei Shell project to total contract

and Engineering Pte. Ltd; Incorporates two

value US$200.0 million

100%-owned subsidiaries - Kreuz International Pte.
Ltd as an investment holding company and Kreuz
Engineering Limited (Labuan) for offshore marine
engineering and vessel chartering activities; Forms
51:49 JV with Rahaman Sendiran Berhad to source
and secure onshore and offshore energy projects
in Brunei; Enters cooperative agreement with
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Company
and Vietsovpetro Joint Venture to tap the offshore
oil and gas market in Vietnam
•

Oct: Incorporates PT Swiber Offshore to provide
Offshore EPCIC services in Indonesia

•

Nov: Incorporates two subsidiaries for deepwater
drilling business - Swiber Offshore Drilling Pte.
Ltd. (90%-owned) and Black Gold Drilling Pte. Ltd.
(90%-owned)

4

Other key corporate developments

technologies

•

•

May: Goes asset light, announcing a US$87.5
million sales and leaseback for five vessels that

include pipelay barge - Swiber Conquest and AHTS

million in FY2006

•

million in 1QFY07

and Swiber Ada; Receives shareholders’ approval
•

•
•

•

Jun: Proposes S$120.4 million private placement

Jul: Acquires four vessels for US$70.6 million that

of 55.35 million new shares to fund growth;

include one submersible and three accommodation

Placement was subsequently completed in July,

barges

raising S$117.3 million net proceeds

Sep: Acquires a 4,180 tons M-80 offshore derrick

•

Jul: Establishes S$300 million Multi-currency Medium

crane for US$53.13 million

Term Note (MTN) programme, subsequently raising

Oct: Proposes US$95.0 million sales and leaseback

S$108.5 million from a bond offering;

of five vessels that include Swiber Concorde, Swiber

•

Sandefjord, subsequently receives approval for this

•

Sep: Appoints Joseph Chen as Vice President of
Brunei operations

in December; Acquires two Subsea Support vessels
and two deepwater AHTS for US$108.0 million

Aug: Reports 678% rise in 2QFY07 net profit to
US$6.2 million on revenue of US$25.4 million

Valiant, Swiber Oslo, Swiber Gallant and Swiber

•

May: Reports doubling of net profit to US$3.7

million on a 205.8% surge in revenue to US$19.3

- Swiber Navigator, Swiber Explorer, Swiber Torunn
for this in June

Feb: Reports doubling of earnings to US$12.1

million on 262.9% jump in revenue to US$66.8

•

Oct: Strategic extension of capabilities to subsea

Nov: Unveils plans for the Equatorial Driller, a cost

and deepsea activities; Promotes Nitish Gupta,

effective and superior deepwater drill vessel

Executive Vice President, Offshore Construction,
to Chief Operating Officer
•

Nov: Reports 270.4% rise in 3QFY07 net profit to
US$19.7 million on revenue of US$45.4 million
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Investments in marine assets with new designs and
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Delivering What
We Promised

A MESSAGE F ROM THE C HAIRM AN AN D C EO

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present Swiber’s 2007 annual
report, our second since our public listing in November
2006. Fiscal 2007 was an eventful year not only for the
Group, which pulled in a commendable performance,
but for the offshore oil and gas industry and the global
economy in general as well.
Benefiting from the perennial high oil and natural gas prices in 2007, the oil
and gas industry over the last 12 months was buoyant, marked by increasing
capital expenditures in offshore facilities and vessels by industry players in
their ongoing quests to explore, develop and produce oil and natural gas.
Set against this upbeat landscape, Swiber reported an exceptional finish for
the year underpinned by growth across all fronts. We expanded our core
business; our armada of marine assets; our pool of talented people; and
the markets we operate in. And we met most of the high goals we set for
ourselves.
I am pleased to review our accomplishments for the 12 months ended 31
December 2007 (FY2007).
AN EXCEPTIONAL 2007
Our financial performance
In FY2007, Swiber reported a year of outstanding financial growth marked by
many milestone achievements. We achieved record earnings with net profit
reaching US$49.7 million, a 309% increase over FY2006. Revenue rose 126%
to US$151.2 million.
Our strong set of results in FY2007 was due, in no small measure, to our
team’s sustained and focused efforts in business development. Growth for
Swiber during the year was mainly propelled by our offshore engineering
and construction segment, which raked in revenues of US$117.1 million for
the Group, a 150% improvement from FY2006’s contribution of US$46.8
million. Growth in our offshore marine support services was solid as well.
Revenue for the segment increased 12% to US$22.4 million. And for the first
time, Swiber’s recently acquired shipyard business, Kreuz Shipbuilding and
Engineering Pte. Ltd., turned in revenue of US$11.7 million.
But by far the most striking development in 2007 was the breakdown of
revenue by geographical regions. While Malaysia accounted for the bulk

Our market capitalisation tripled from approximately S$350
million (as at 29 December 2006) to almost S$1.0 billion (as
at 31 December 2007). Earnings per share increased to 12.56
US cents (based on 395, 537,671 weighted average ordinary
shares in issue) for FY2007, from 4.32 US cents in the yearago period (adjusted for the share split of consolidation of
every six ordinary shares in the share capital into one ordinary
share and the subsequent sub-division of every one ordinary
share in the share capital into 100 ordinary shares on 29
September 2006). Net asset value per share rose to 41.68
US cents as at 31 December 2007, from 13.13 US cents as at
31 December 2006. Our Returns on Equity (ROE) and Asset
(ROA) stood at 28.0% and 13.4% respectively in FY2007, as
compared to 24.7% and 13.3%, respectively, in FY2006.

Our dedicated HSE Training Manager, Dr Ganesh Shastri,
has been busy imparting the training to our multi-cultural
teams both onshore and offshore. He is ably supported by
our HSE Officers, managers, supervisors and foremen, all
of whom reinforce the same standards and message – it is
unacceptable that we cause harm to ourselves as individuals,
other people, our equipment whether owned or leased,
materials, others assets, the environment in which we work,
the planet as a whole and future generations who will inherit
the legacies we leave behind.
We will not stop here, as it is critical that all line-managers
are trained to deliver the core concepts to their direct
reports and thus cascade a consistent message to all our
employees wherever they may be and whatever work they
may perform.
As Cause No Harm and HSE are an integral part of our
management style and processes, they occupy the primary
priority in the execution of our work.
I personally stand by and encourage my staff to forward our
goal of inculcating the culture of Cause No Harm throughout
all our operating areas, realising that words are not enough
to effect lasting change and that it takes concerted and
consistent actions as a role model to bring this about.

Our corporate mission states that Swiber is committed to
“consistently outperforming ourselves by maintaining and
achieving an above average return on investment for our
stakeholders measured in terms of ROE, EPS, revenue
growth, operating profit and market capitalization”. I am
pleased to note that we have delivered on these promises
to build exceptional value for our shareholders.

Improving Our Operations
2007 was a busy year for us as we worked hard to lay the
ground for the creation of a stronger Swiber. The objectives
of these activities were to position and prepare the Group,
operationally, to increase our market share and gain visibility
in a fast growing oil and gas industry.

HSE – Our Commitment
We have put strong emphasis on Swiber’s core values of
Cause No Harm and our responsibility to the health and
welfare of our employees and towards the environment
which sustains us. We have been training our employees on
the principles of Cause No Harm along with our TRADEmark
company values, inculcating these as a culture throughout
our organisation.

• Reorganising our operations
At the corporate level, we began a strategic review of
our businesses and reorganised our operations into three
units – Offshore Construction Services (OCS), Offshore
Support Services (OSS), and Offshore Drilling Services
(ODS) – allowing us to leverage market synergies to drive
sales and profit improvements. Executives with proven
records of building profitable growth businesses lead
each of these units. They and their teams pushed forward
in 2007 with effective growth strategies and operational
improvements.

It takes time. As our fleet expands and we employ people
who are new to Swiber and our world-class Health, Safety
and Environmental System, they have to be guided and
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We are reaping the results from our geographical expansion
strategy, a strategy we embarked on in earnest subsequent
to our listing in 2006. Back then, we saw significant
opportunities to accelerate our revenue growth in Asia
Pacific and Middle East, where markets are developing at a
robust rate and there is room to increase our market share.

educated to our goals and the processes involved in
conducting our work in a sustainable way.
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of our revenue in 2006 at 61%, we see a different picture
emerging in 2007. For the year under review, contributions
from Malaysia accounted for 34% at US$50.9 million. Brunei
reeled in US$50.8 million, at 33%, Singapore at US$19.5,
with 13%, while Indonesia and other regions accounted
for US$19.1 million, at 13%, and US$10.8 million, at 7%, to
Group revenue, respectively.

• Recruiting and developing the best people
We continue to make strategic investments in our people
– expanding our breadth of global talent. In 2007, we
recruited aggressively across all our major geographic
locations to meet our demand for services. We have
added a diverse mix of senior level people from renowned
firms within our industry, and presently possess what we
believe to be the highest caliber of executive and senior
management in our company history. We welcomed more
than 200 employees to Swiber and grew our workforce to
more than 400 employees by the end of 2007.
• Continous Training Programs
We achieved important milestones in our ongoing
effort to educate, energise and inspire our people. We
introduced organisation-wide training programs that will
help us build an even stronger team of professionals with
a share commitment to deliver value to our customers.
A series of new programs will be introduced to equip our
people with skills for an enriching and rewarding career
in Swiber.
• Moving to our new premises at IBP
In line with the vigorous pace of growth enjoyed by the
Group, we relocated our headquarters to a spanking new
space at the International Business Park in August 2007.
Spread over four levels, our new premises will have ample
room to accommodate Swiber’s planned expansion of
our scale of operations and staff strength in the future.
Swiber’s new HQ boasts extensive training facilities,
including a 210-man auditorium and a 50-man training
room, which are ideal as on-going internal staff training
will be an area that the Group will be concentrating on in
2008 and beyond.
In addition, our new office also has a fully-equipped gym,
roof-top garden area, a fully-stocked pantry, the Swiber
Cafe, a recreational lounge with karaoke facilities, pool
table, board games and leisure magazines, ensuring a
well-balanced and healthy working environment for all
our employees.

Positioning Swiber for Tomorrow: Reaching further and
deeper
While we are proud of our ability to deliver on our near-term
commitments and run Swiber as a world-class company
today, we continue to take steps to position Swiber for future
growth.
Swiber charged into 2008 on the strength of a recordbreaking 2007. Since the start of the new financial year, the
Group has announced a succession of new contract wins
that included a US$35 million Letter of Intent (“LOI”) for the
transportation and installation of three pipelines totaling 84
kilometers in Indonesia; an offshore installation project in
Malaysia worth approximately US$31 million; two projects
for the design, engineering and fabrication of three offshore
oil and gas marine assets totaling more than US$20 million;
and a significant US$127 million LOI for EPCI work in the
thriving Indian market.
The significance of these developments cannot be overemphasised. The rapid pace of project wins serves to
illustrate the market’s appetite for high quality offshore
marine and EPCIC works which continues to increase at an
exponential rate. Oil prices and demand are hitting record
highs, encouraging higher levels of capital expenditure by
oil majors in the offshore exploration, field development and
production of oil and gas.
With the slew of contracts, our outstanding order book
has been taken to a new height of US$506 million as at 12
March 2007.
Going forward, the Board is working very closely with the
Management, to formulate a flexible and forward-looking
growth plan. This will position our Company to capitalise on
the tremendous potential of offshore oil and gas industry.
The roadmap for this growth plan covers three core areas:
• Expanding our armada of marine assets
From the current fleet of 28 offshore and construction
vessels, Swiber intends to expand our fleet to
approximately 38 vessels by the end of 2008, and to
47 by 2010, substantially augmenting the Group’s core
competence in the offshore engineering and construction
sector in the future. In essence, a larger fleet will enable
the Group to expand geographically and boost our
capabilities to bid and handle more contracts.

In November 2007, we teamed up with offshore oil and gas
industry veteran, Mr Glen Olivera, to incorporate Swiber
Offshore Drilling Pte Ltd (“Swiber Offshore Drilling”)
to spearhead the Group’s deepwater drilling business.
Swiber Offshore Drilling is 90% owned by Swiber, with
the remaining 10% held by Mr Olivera.
The incorporation of Swiber Offshore Drilling adds an
exciting dimension to our business model. Every detail,
every nuance of this new business area has been carefully
planned. Our vision is not to just build another business
… this will form a key growth engine for the company
going forward.
Separately, through our subsidiary, Kreuz International,
we have also been busy expanding our ship building,
design and engineering capabilities. In February 2008,
the Group formed a 49-51% joint venture partnership
with Principia Recherche & Development SA for the
supply and sale of studies, design of offshore and marine
facilities and related services in the offshore and marine
industry in South East Asia.
Kreuz is an important and strategic chess piece in our
overall master plan. Through Kreuz, we have services
that are highly complementary to our offshore EPCIC
business, such as marine offshore services; yard facilities
with a comprehensive and growing capability for ship
repair, ship conversion and construction; and a widening
range of design, fabrication and offshore engineering

• Expanding our geographical markets
In terms of market development, we have set up offices
in India, Brunei and Thailand to increase our presence
in these countries and the Middle East, and have also
entered into various collaboration agreements and MOUs
in Vietnam, Brunei and Middle East. Looking ahead, we
will continue to explore strategic alliances throughout
the Asia Pacific and Middle East region as part of our
strategy to increase our presence geographically.
We are excited about our progress and believe this focus on
growth will help position Swiber, and our stakeholders, for
long-term success.
Commitment to shareholders
We accomplished a great deal last year, we recognise
that significant work lies ahead in delivering sustained
improvements in performance.
To all our teams, I extend my thanks for a job well done in
2007 and for your continuing support as we work toward
achieving our goals. Your positive attitudes, determination
to win on every front, and your loyalty to our great company
are an inspiration to me every day.
I hope this report gives you, our shareholders and
stakeholders, a sense for the exciting opportunities ahead
and for the depth of our commitment to build and create
an even stronger company. I look forward to reporting our
progress in 2008 and beyond.
In closing, I thank the Lord Jesus for giving me this
opportunity to create a world-class enterprise with
Swiber. In 2007, we made great strides in this creation,
but we’re not finished. This is an ongoing process that
should have no real end. I commit the future into His
hands. To Him be the Glory!

Raymond Goh
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Swiber Holdings Limited
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• Expanding our capabilities
While our offshore EPCIC business will continue to be the
main revenue contributor for the next two years, we have
honed in on the fast-growing deepwater drilling activities
to further drive our aggressive growth trajectory.

services. And through Kreuz, Swiber is able to vertically
integrate our capabilities, transforming the Group into
a larger and stronger entity in the offshore oil and gas
arena.
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But what really excites me is our new state-of-theart drilling vessel, the Equatorial Driller. Due to be
delivered in 2010, the Equatorial Driller is ideal for cost
effective deepwater drilling in benign weather offshore
environments. The innovative engineering and design of
Equatorial Driller offers huge cost savings as it is faster to
build as compared to a conventional semi-submersible;
uses less steel which equates to lower capex for Swiber;
and these cost savings can then be passed on to our
customers by charging a lower day rate. Our plan is to
deploy this vessel in the deepwater regions of South East
Asia and India.

B OARD OF DI RECTORS

Raymond Goh
Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
Mr Raymond Goh founded Swiber
in 1996 and is the key figure behind
the group’s phenomenal growth
into a public-listed, billion-dollar
company today. He was appointed
to the Board of Directors in 2004.
As Executive Chairman and CEO,
the visionary Mr Goh determines
the long-term strategic direction
of Swiber and its group of
companies.

Jean Pers
Executive Director

Francis Wong
Executive Director

Mr Jean Pers joined Swiber in
2002, bringing with him 30 years
of engineering experience in the
Offshore EPCIC business mainly in
the North Sea. He was appointed
to the Board of Directors in
2005. Previously, he was: Head
of the Marine Department at IKL
Indonesia from 1997 to 2000; Project
Manager at EURODIM France
from 1991 to 1997 and; Advisor to
Voies Navigables de France. Since
1988, Mr Pers has been a member
of CNEDIES Centre Nationale
des Experts, an organisation that
provides expertise to analyse the
causes of industrial accidents.

Mr Francis Wong joined Swiber
in 2005 and was appointed to the
Board of Directors in the same
year. Previously, he was: Executive
Director at Genesis Equity (SA)
Pty Ltd from 2000 to 2005; Group
Financial Controller and Chief
Financial Officer of Pan Pacific Asia
Bhd from 1995 to 1999; Manager
at Ernst & Young (Malaysia) from
1993 to 1995 and; Audit Supervisor
at Coopers & Lybrand (New
Zealand) from 1988 to 1993. Mr
Wong is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators;
a certified practicing accountant
of CPA Australia; and a chartered
accountant certified by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants
and the New Zealand Institute of
Chartered Accountants.

Leonard Tay
Independent Director

Oon Thian Seng
Independent Director

Mr Darren Yeo, who has more
than a decade’s experience
in the offshore marine
support
sector,
joined
Swiber in 2003. He was
appointed to the Board of
Directors in 2004. Previously,
he was: Marketing Manager
at Labroy Marine Ltd from
1995 to 2003 and; Design
Engineer at ST Aerospace
Limited from 1993 to 1995.

Mr Yeo Jeu Nam, who
has more than 20 years of
consultancy
experience,
was appointed to the Board
of Directors in 2006. Mr
Yeo is also an Independent
Director
of
Singapore
public-listed EDMI Limited
and the Founder and
Managing
Director
of
Radiance Consulting Pte Ltd,
a management consultancy
specialising in corporate
strategy and transformation,
corporate regeneration and
restructuring and human
capital solutions. Before
starting his own consultancy,
he was a Senior Consulting
Partner with Ernst & Young
Consultants Pte Ltd where
he headed the Strategy and
Transformation practice as
well as the HR Consulting
practice for more than 12
years. He also spent about
two years at PwC Consulting
where he headed their
Public Sector Consulting
practice.

Mr Tay is currently an
Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of Altitude
Trust Management Pte.
Ltd., the trustee manager
of Altitude Aircraft Leasing
Trust. Under his belt, he has
over a decade of financial
management
experience
and was appointed to the
Board of Directors in 2006.
Prior to joining Altitude
Trust Management Pte.
Ltd., he was the Chief
Financial Officer of AGVA
Corporation Limited listed
on the SGX-ST. Mr Tay has
also spent nine years in
public accounting with the
Big Four accounting firms,
four years of those were
spent in the United States
of America. Mr Tay holds a
bachelors degree in business
from Monash University,
majoring in accounting,
and is a member of the
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore,
CPA Australia, the Singapore
Human Resource Institute
and the Singapore Institute
of Directors.

Mr Oon Thian Seng is an
advocate and solicitor and is
a partner of TS Oon & Bazul,
Singapore and TS Oon &
Partners, Malaysia since
2002. He was appointed
to the Board of Directors
in 2006. Mr Oon holds a
Bachelor of Laws (Honours)
degree from the University
of Warwick and a Master
of Laws from the London
School
of
Economics,
University of London in
England. He was admitted
to the Bar of England and
Wales in 1991 and as an
Advocate and Solicitor
of the Supreme Court of
Singapore in 1993 and the
High Court of Malaya in
2001.

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Yeo Jeu Nam
Lead Independent Director
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Darren Yeo
Executive Director

SENI OR MA NA GEMENT T EAM

Raymond Goh

Jean Pers

Nitish Gupta

Francis Wong

Darren Yeo

Ronald L. Schakosky

Leading The Way:

The Reasons Why Swiber
Always Delivers Results
Experienced, visionary and achievers - these are just some words that describe the talented team of top-level executives
at Swiber. We hire only the best and our management teams for each of our three business units are structured to
deliver operational excellence and outstanding growth for Swiber.

Offshore Construction Services (OCS)
Raymond Goh
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)

Darren Yeo
Executive Vice President - Marine
(See profile on page 25 of this annual report)

Jean Pers
Senior Executive Vice President - Engineering
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)

Ronald L. Schakosky
Vice President - Business Development
(See profile on page 30 of this annual report)

Nitish Gupta
Chief Operating Officer and Executive Vice President

Hilmy Chung
Vice President - Corporate Finance
(See profile on page 30 of this annual report)

Mr Nitish Gupta joined Swiber in 2006 as Executive Vice
President of Offshore Construction and was appointed
to the role of Chief Operating Officer in 2007. Mr Gupta
has extensive working experience in India, Southeast
Asia and the Middle East, having worked for a number of
established offshore oil and gas construction companies
since 1992.
Francis Wong
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President Corporate Services
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)

Pooranathen Elliappan
Vice President - Corporate and Commercial Services
Mr Elliappan joined Swiber in 2007 as Vice President
of Corporate and Commercial Services. Part of his
responsibilities is to ratchet up the performance
and project deliveries of the Group. With a process
engineering background and after 26 years in the
supply chain management of the oil and gas industry,
Mr Elliappan makes a seismic addition to the senior
leadership team of Swiber.

Peter J. Worrall

Richard J. Pursell

Joseph Chen

Captain Hendrik
Eddy Purnomo

Angat Anum Lingoh

Peter J. Worrall
Vice President and General Manager - Operations

Captain Hendrik Eddy Purnomo
Vice President - Indonesia

Mr Peter J. Worrall joined Swiber in 2007 to lead the
Offshore installation-related work for Swiber’s Offshore
EPCIC operations. He has more than 36 years of hands-on
experience in the offshore oilfield construction industry
having managed offshore oil and gas projects in Asia for
major corporations such as Horizon Offshore and Global
Industries. Amongst many others, Mr Worrall’s extensive
expertise includes pipe-lay through conventional lay
barges and the rentis line installation system, jacket
and deck installation. Mr Worrall holds a certificate from
Seaton Park High Technical.

Captain Hendrik Eddy Purnomo joined Swiber in 1996
as President Director of our Indonesian subsidiary, PT
Swiber Berjaya. He was subsequently appointed to head
Swiber’s Indonesian Operations as Vice President. He
brings with him extensive experience in the management
and operations of marine vessels in Indonesia. Captain
Purnomo graduated from the Indonesia Merchant Marine
Academy in 1979 as a qualified mate of ocean-going and
mate of anchor handling tug supply boats.

Richard J. Pursell
Vice President - Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
(See profile on page 29 of this annual report)
Joseph Chen
Vice President - Brunei
Mr Joseph Chen joined Swiber in 2007 to spearhead
operations in Brunei Darussalam and drive the Group’s
expansion, strategic alliances and activities in Asia
Pacific and the Middle East. Previously, Mr Chen was
Business Development Manager in a Brunei-based
civil and mechanical Oil and Gas Petrochemical related
construction company. With over 30 years of management
experience, he held various senior administration and
business management positions in several regional
companies in Brunei. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree, University of Southern Cross,
Australia (Best Graduand) and a Business Diploma in
Industrial Administration, School of Accountancy and
Business Studies, UK.

Angat Anum Lingoh
Project Director and Vice President – Malaysia
Mr Angat Anum Lingoh, who has 26 years of experience
in the oil and gas industry, is responsible for operations
and development of Swiber Malaysia. Anum graduated
in 1982 from Newcastle-upon-Tyne, England with BSc in
Mechanical Engineering. He has been working in various
capacities for Shell Operating Companies in Sarawak,
Malaysia, Brunei, Nigeria, South Korea and Australia
(Woodside Petroleum), mainly in Pipeline Engineering
and Project Management. Prior to joining the Swiber
Group in 2008, his last posting was working for Chevron
Oil in Kazakhstan.
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Hilmy Chung

SENI OR MA NA GEMENT T EAM

Raymond Goh

Darren Yeo

John Payne

Kelvin Yeo

Offshore Support Services (OSS)
Kreuz International Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of Swiber
Raymond Goh
Chairman
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)
Darren Yeo
Deputy Chairman
(See profile on page 25 of this annual report)
John Payne
Chief Executive Officer
Mr Payne is responsible for the management
and ongoing development of Swiber’s
Offshore Support Services Division under Kreuz
International. A Master Mariner, he has over 30
years industry experience both onshore and
offshore in International Subsea Service Sectors
and since coming ashore, has held senior
roles in general management, service delivery
and business development which included
developing and managing joint ventures in USA
and Asia. Recently holding the position of Chief
Operating Officer with a publicly listed company,
he is also a Chartered Director with experience
of rapidly growing businesses within the Asean
regions.
Kelvin Yeo
Vice President - Commercial and Business
Development
Mr Yeo joined Swiber in 2007 to spearhead
operations and business development in

Australia. With over 11 years of experience
in senior management and commercial roles,
Mr Yeo has a well rounded background in
the offshore oil & gas, shipping and maritime
industries. Previously, he was Business
Development Manager for Clough Limited.
Mr Yeo graduated from the University of Western
Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
with double majors in accounting and finance.
Mark Leong
Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mr Leong is responsible for the accounting and
finance functions of Kreuz International Pte Ltd
and its subsidiaries. Prior to joining our Group
in 2007, Mr Leong was the Group Financial
Controller of Westcomb Financial Group Limited.
He was with Westcomb Financial Group Limited
from 2002 to 2007 and was involved in its initial
public offering on the SGX-ST in 2004. Between
2001 and 2002, Mr Leong was the financial
accountant of NASDAQ listed II-VI Group and was
in charge of overseeing the financial reporting of
its Singapore and China subsidiaries. Mr Leong
started his career in audit with KPMG in 1999
and was involved in several initial public offering
projects. He left KMPG as an Audit Senior in
2001. Mr Leong is a Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) as well
as a Certified Public Accountant with the Institute
of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
(ICPAS).

Richard J. Pursell
Vice President - Health, Safety and Environment
(HSE)
Mr Richard J. Pursell joined Swiber in 2007 to provide
top-down counsel on corporate responsibility and
to guide the company on a process of continuous
improvement. He is an experienced Occupational
Health, Safety and Environmental practitioner with
more than 20 years of practical application in multicultural and multidisciplinary environment. He is
a Certified Safety Executive for the World Safety
Organisation; an Accredited Safety Auditor for
International Loss Control Institute; and is certified by
Det Norske Veritas for Qualitative Risk Assessment
and Environmental Management; by ICI Engineering
for Hazard Management and by Philip Crosby and
Associates for Quality Management Systems.
Nigel Saunders
Assistant Vice President and General Manager,
Offshore Marine Services
Mr Saunders, who started his career as a commercial
diver for McDermott, has 24 years of progressive
experience in offshore marine industry. Mr Saunders’
main career focus relates to SPM, FPSO and offshore
marine construction. Through his career, he has
managed and supported SPM/FPSO projects in
Thailand, Russia, Australia and Saudi Arabia. He
remained for seven years operating Asian contracts
for Tidewater Ltd and Svitzer. In 2004, he moved to
Singapore as the General Manager for Svitzer where
he managed the fleet within the Far East. During this
period, he successfully worked with a design team

Nigel Saunders

Derek Koh

to build a series of Offshore Multipurpose Support
Vessels (MSVs) for the SPM and FPSO support
market. Mr Saunders holds a Diploma in Safety
Management and is currently pursuing his MBA.
Derek Koh
Deputy General Manager - Shipbuilding and
Engineering
Mr Koh, who has more than a decade in the Marine
Logistics, Chartering and Shipping industries, brings
with him extensive experience in the operation of
container liner services plying the Southeast Asian
region and freight forwarding services for projects
shipments. Trained in Shipbuilding and Offshore
Engineering, he was the Operations Manager and
Project Manager for Swissco Offshore Pte Ltd before
moving on to Singapore Marine Logistics Pte Ltd as
Deputy General Manager. Mr Koh came onboard as
an Assets Manager of Swiber Holdings in 2007 and
was seconded to the Group’s newly acquired yard as
Deputy General Manager.
Chia Fook Eng
Advisor to the Board of Directors
Mr Chia Fook Eng serves as an advisor to Swiber’s
board of directors on matters relating to the Group’s
onshore construction and fabrication business.
Mr Chia comes from a strong marine engineering
background, bringing with him almost 40 years of
experience in this area. He has worked for established
engineering companies that include among others
Sime Sembcorp Engineering Sdn Bhd.

Chia Fook Eng
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Raymond Goh

Glen Olivera

Jean Pers

Francis Wong

Offshore Drilling Services (ODS)
Swiber Offshore Drilling Pte Ltd
Raymond Goh
Chairman
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)

Francis Wong
Executive Vice President - Finance
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)

Glen Olivera
Chief Executive Officer

Darren Yeo
Executive Vice President - Marine
(See profile on page 25 of this annual report)

With 35 years of experience, Mr Glen Olivera is
one of the world’s most experienced deepwater
oil and gas drillers with a track record of
substantially cutting costs in offshore wells.
Mr Olivera has supervised onsite drilling projects
and managed drilling groups that have drilled in
excess of 130 deepwater wells in East Kalimantan,
Myanmar, Philippines and Australia in waters
from 800 to 2,400 metres. His background
includes significant experience drilling in shelf
operations in West Africa and Trinidad; ERD
wells in the Netherlands and California; and
HTHP wells in Madura Straits and Mobile Bay
and rocky mountain regions of USA.
Jean Pers
Senior Executive Vice President - Engineering
(See profile on page 24 of this annual report)

Ronald L. Schakosky
Vice President - Business Development
Mr Ronald L. Schakosky joined Swiber in 2007
to spearhead the development of its Floating
Production Systems business in Asia Pacific
and the Middle East. Mr Schakosky has more
than 30 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry spanning diverse geographical markets
such as Africa, Middle East and the Far East.
Prior to joining Swiber, he held various posts in
Newfield Exploration, Pearl Oil, Unocal Oil Corp,
MODEC Inc., Petronas Carigali Sdn Bhd, and
Dubai Petroleum Company. Mr Schakosky holds
a BSC Mechanical Engineering from Midwestern
University.

Hilmy Chung

Ee Li Choo

Richard J. Pursell

Hilmy Chung
Chief Financial Officer

Ee Li Choo
Vice President - Operations

Ms Chung has had an illustrious career in both
the banking and legal professions, with in-depth
working experiences in global and domestic debt
capital markets, as well as corporate law practice
in Malaysia. Prior to joining Swiber, Ms Chung was
a qualified legal practitioner in a Malaysia-based
corporate law firm in Kuala Lumpur (1996-1999), and
she subsequently joined the banking profession;
first with Schroders Merchant Bank in Singapore
(1999), Salomon Smith Barney in Hong Kong (20002003), Merrill Lynch in its South Asia’s debt capital
markets team based in Singapore (2003-2004), with
her last position as a senior transactor in Citigroup’s
Singapore debt capital markets team (2004-2008).
Throughout her career as a debt capital markets
specialist, she has had various training and working
assignments in Asia, New York and Sydney. Ms
Chung graduated from the University of Adelaide
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree (major in
Accounting) and a Bachelor of Law degree (with
honours), under a full EMSS Scholarship scheme.
She was also an ASEAN Scholarship holder.

Ms Choo joined Swiber in 2008 as the Vice President
of Operations of the Group’s offshore drilling
division. Her first introduction to an oilfield was
in 1994 where she worked as a Rig Engineer with
drilling contractor, Schlumberger Sedco Forex. As a
Rig Engineer with Schlumberger Sedco Forex, she
had extensive experience working onboard a wide
number of semi-submersible and jack up rigs in the
Asian region. In 2000, she joined Unocal Oil Company
as a deepwater drilling engineer and specialised
in deepwater drilling for Unocal in Indonesia. Her
expertise was designing and executing deepwater
exploration wells. In 2006, she joined Hess as senior
drilling engineer for a well development project
comprising 12 oil and gas wells.
Richard J. Pursell
Vice President - Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE)
(See profile on page 29 of this annual report)
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Darren Yeo

C O RPORATE STRUCTURE

SWIBER
HOLDINGS
LIMITED

OCS

Swiber
Rahaman Sdn
Bhd (Brunei)
51%

Swiber
Offshore Sdn
Bhd (Brunei)
100%

Swiber
Offshore
(India) PL
(India)
100%

PT Swiber
Offshore
(Indonesia)
99.5%

PT Swiber
Berjaya
(Indonesia)
80%

Swiber
Offshore
Marine PL
(Singapore)
100%

Swiber
Offshore
Construction
PL (Singapore)
100%

Swiber
Maritime
Limited
(Seychelles)
100%

Swiber
Marine PL
(Singapore)
100%

OBT
Holdings PL
(Singapore)
30%

Swiwar
Offshore PL
(Singapore)
50%

Kreuz
Engineering
Ltd (Labuan)
100%

Kreuz
International
PL
(Singapore)
100%

Swiber
Offshore
Drilling PL
(Singapore)
90%

Kreuz
Shipbuilding
& Engineering
PL (Singapore)
100%

Kreuz
Offshore
Marine PL
(Singapore)
100%

PL

Black Gold
Drilling PL
(Singapore)
100%

: Pte Ltd

OCS : Offshore Construction Services
OSS : Offshore Support Services
ODS : Offshore Drilling Services
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Swiber
Engineering
Ltd (Labuan)
100%

ODS
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Swiber
Marine
(Malaysia)
Sdn Bhd
(Malaysia)
100%

OSS

M ANAGEMENT’ S DI S CUS S IO N AN D ANALYS IS O F FY2007 R E SULTS

3 YEARS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue (US$’000)

Net Profit (US$’000)

3.

4%

151,177

CA

CA

G
R:

G
R:

18

18

6.

7%

49,706

66,772
12,140
6,178

18,400

FY05

FY06

FY05

FY07

FY06

FY07

Group revenue grew at a Compounded Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 186.7% from US$18.4 million
in FY05 to US$151.2 million in FY07 while net profit grew at a CAGR of 183.4% from US$6.2 million in
FY05 to US$49.7 million in FY07.
FY07 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
US$’000

FY2007

FY2006

+ / (-)

Revenue

151,177

66,772

126.4%

EBITDA

56,172

14,567

285.6%

NPAT

49,706

12,140

309.4%

EPS (US cents)

12.56

4.32

190.7%

NAV per share (US cents)

41.68

13.13

217.4%

The Group’s revenue for FY07 increased by approximately 126.4% from US$66.77 million in FY06 to
US$151.18 million in FY07. The increase was mainly attributed to the increased number of new offshore
EPCIC contracts for the transportation and installation of offshore pipelines, jackets and top decks in
Malaysia, Brunei and Indonesia.
Overall, the Group’s gross profit margin improved from 22.93% in FY06 to 28.34% in FY07 and was
mainly attributed to the reduction in utilisation of third party vessels. The Group’s profit after tax
increased by approximately 309.4% from US$12.14 million in FY06 to US$49.71 million in FY07. This
resulted from an increase in revenue, operating margin and gain on disposal of vessels.
As at 12 March 2008, the Group had an order book (including Letters of Award) of US$506 million as
compared to an order book of US$187 million in February 2007. The increase reflects the Group’s
ability to secure more contracts with the expansion of its resources and capability.
Moving forward, the Group will continue to expand its fleet of offshore support vessels and offshore
construction vessels (particularly pipelay barges and derrick crane barges) and increase its capacity in
tandem with the growing demand of the offshore EPCIC services in the Asia Pacific and Middle East
regions. Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Group expects FY08 to be better than FY07 based on
the completion schedule of its projects.

FY2007

FY2006

+ / (-)

117,096

46,792

150.2%

Gross Profit

28,361

12,132

133.8%

Gross Profit Margin

24.2%

25.9%

22,419

19,980

122.1%
210.5%
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS REVIEW
US$’000
Offshore EPCIC
Revenue

Offshore Marine Support
Revenue
Gross Profit

9,867

3,178

Gross Profit Margin

44.0%

15.9%

11,662

na

Gross Profit

4,611

na

Gross Profit Margin

39.5%

na

151,177

66,772

126.4%

Gross Profit

42,839

15,310

179.8%

Gross Profit Margin

28.3%

22.9%

Shipbuilding & Repair
Revenue

Total
Revenue

Currently, the Group operates a fleet of 28 vessels as compared with its initial 10 vessels at the beginning
of FY07. A larger fleet of vessels allow the Group to be able to expand geographically as well as to
bid and handle more contracts. Nonetheless, in the next two years, the offshore EPCIC business will
continue to be the main contributor to the Group’s revenue.
CASHFLOW
US$’000

FY2007

FY2006

Net cash / (used in) from operating activities

(16,835)

11,819

Net cash used in investing activities

(58,845)

(28,466)

Net cash from financing activities

148,466

23,115

73,189

6,703

9,443

2,740

Net increase in cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

403

235

82,632

9,443

The successful completion of the issue of 55,350,000 placement shares raised net proceeds of US$76.57
million in FY 07. This, together with US$49.67 milllion of profit for the year ended 31 December 2007,
further strengthened the Group’s balance sheet with total equity increasing from US$49.05 million in
FY06 to US$177.48 million in FY07. The Group’s debt to equity ratio is 0.53 times.
Cash and cash equivalents increased due mainly to net cash generated from financing activities as a
result of the proceeds from issue of shares and bond and proceeds from the disposal of assets held for
sale. This was offset by net cash used in operating activities and purchases of fixed assets.

CORPORAT E IN FO RM AT IO N

Board of Directors
Raymond Goh, Executive Chairman & CEO
Jean Pers, Executive Director
Darren Yeo, Executive Director
Francis Wong, Executive Director
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within the
Group and adopts practices based on the Code of Corporate Governance 2005 (the “Code”) where it is applicable and
practical to the Group. The Company recognizes the importance of good governance for continued growth and investor
confidence.
The Board is pleased to report compliance of the Company with the Code except where otherwise stated.
BOARD MATTERS
Principle 1: Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The Board is collectively
responsible for the success of the company. The Board works with Management to achieve this and the Management
remains accountable to the Board.
The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term shareholder value. Apart from its statutory duties and
responsibilities, the Board sets strategy for the Group, overseas the executive management and affairs of the Group. It
reviews and advises on overall strategies, policies and objectives, sets goals, supervises Management, monitors business
performance and goals achievement, and assumes responsibility for overall corporate governance of the Group.
The Board is also responsible for the following corporate matters:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Approval of quarterly, half-yearly and year-end results announcement;
Approval of the annual report and accounts;
Convening of shareholders’ meetings;
Major investments and funding;
Interested Person Transaction of a material nature; and
Material acquisitions and disposal of assets.

Apart from the above, interested person transactions and the Group’s internal audit procedures are reviewed by the Audit
Committee and reported to the Board.
The Board meets on a regular basis and as and when necessary to address any specific significant matters that may arise.
While the Board considers directors’ attendance at Board meetings to be important, it should not be the main criteria
to measure their contributions. The Board also takes into account the contributions by board members in other forms
including periodical reviews, provisions of guidance and advice on various matters relating to the Group.
The Board is assisted by three Board Committees, namely Audit Committee (“AC”), Nominating Committee (“NC”) and
Remuneration Committee (“RC”). These committees function within clearly defined terms of references and operating
procedures, which will be reviewed on a regular basis by the Board. The effectiveness of each committee will also be
constantly reviewed by the Board.
During the financial year, the number of meetings held and the attendance of each member of the Board and AC meeting
together with the NC and RC meetings are as follows:

No. of meetings held
Directors
Raymond Goh
Jean Pers
Darren Yeo
Francis Wong
Leonard Tay
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
N/A – Not applicable

Board
4
4
2
4
4
4
4
3

AC

NC

RC

5

1

1

Number of meetings attended
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
5
N/A
5
1
5
1
4
1

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
1
1
1

CORPORATE GOVERNANC E S TAT EM EN T

The Directors receive briefings on regulatory changes to the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX-ST”) and accounting standards. The directors also receive updates on the business of the Group through
regular scheduled meetings and ad hoc Board meetings.

The Board considers that the present Board size facilitates effective decision making and is appropriate for the nature and
scope of the Group’s operations.
The profiles of each of the directors are set out on pages 24 to 25 of this Annual Report.
Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the company – the working of the Board and the
executive responsibility of the company’s business – which will ensure a balance of power and authority, such that no one
individual represents a considerable concentration of power.
The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is the same person. All major decisions
made are subject to majority approval of the Board and are reviewed by the AC, whose members comprise majority of
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr Raymond Goh Kim Teck, leads the Management in setting
strategies, objectives and missions and is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The role of Mr Raymond
Goh includes the scheduling and chairing of Board meetings, and the controlling of quality, quantity and timeliness of
information supplied to the Board.
Mr Raymond Goh’s performance and remuneration will be reviewed annually by the NC and RC, whose members also
comprise only of independent non-executive directors of the Company. As such, with the strong independent element
on the Board that ensures decisions are not based on a considerable concentration of power in a single individual
and the existence of various committees with power and authority to perform key functions believes that there are
adequate safeguards in place to ensure an appropriate balance of power and authority with the spirit of good corporate
governance.
Mr Yeo Jeu Nam is the lead independent director of the Company to whom concerns may be conveyed to as and when
the need arises.
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The Board comprises seven directors of whom four are executive directors and three are independent non-executive
directors, with the independent non-executive directors making up of not less than one third of the Board, thus providing
an independent element on the Board capable of exercising objective judgment. The criteria for independence are
determined based on the definition provided in the Code. The directors appointed are qualified professionals who possess
a diverse range of expertise to provide a balanced view within the Board.

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Principle 2: Board Composition and Balance
There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective judgment on
corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management. No individual or small group of individuals should be
allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Principle 4: Board Membership
There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the Board.
The NC comprises Mr Oon Thian Seng, Mr Leonard Tay and Mr Yeo Jeu Nam as members who are independent nonexecutive directors. Mr Oon Thian Seng is the Chairman of the NC.
The NC is responsible for:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

re-nominating directors (including independent directors) taking into consideration each director’s contribution
and performance;
determining annually whether or not a director is independent;
deciding whether or not a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a director; and
proposing a set of objective performance criteria to the Board for approval and implementation, to evaluate the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

All directors are subject to retirement in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association whereby
one third of the Directors are required to retire (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one third) and subject themselves to re-election by shareholders at every annual general meeting (“AGM”). A
newly appointed director must retire and submit himself for re-election at the next AGM following his appointment and,
thereafter, shall be taken into account in determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation.
At the forthcoming AGM, Mr Jean Pers, Mr Francis Wong and Mr Yeo Jeu Nam will be retiring by rotation pursuant to
Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of Association. All of them, being eligible for re-election, have offered themselves for
re-election.
Principle 5: Board Performance
There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by each director
to the effectiveness of the Board.
The Group implemented the Board-approved evaluation process and performance criteria to assess the performance of
the Board as a whole as well as the contribution of each individual director.
The assessment process involves and includes input from the Board members, applying the performance criteria
recommended by the NC and approved by the Board. The directors’ inputs are collated and reviewed by the Chairman of
the NC, who presents a summary of the overall assessment to the NC for review. Areas where the Board’s performance and
effectiveness could be enhanced and recommendations for improvement are then submitted to the Board for discussion
and for implementation.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Principle 6: Access to Information
In order to fulfil their responsibilities, Board members should be provided with complete, adequate and timely information
prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis.
The Board and the Board Committees are furnished with management reports containing complete, adequate and timely
information, and papers containing relevant background or explanatory information required to support the decisionmaking process. Management team and the Company’s auditors would also provide additional information on the matters
for discussion.
All directors have separate and independent access to senior management and to the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary administers and prepares minutes of Board meetings and assists the Chairman in ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and that applicable statutory and regulatory rules and regulations are complied with.

CORPORATE GOVERNANC E S TAT EM EN T

The directors, in furtherance of their duties, are entitled to take independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company when necessary.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the
remuneration packages of individual directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

(a)
(b)
(c)

recommending to the Board a framework of remuneration for the directors and key executives;
determining specific remuneration packages for each executive directors; and
reviewing all aspects of remuneration, including directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, the options to be
issued under the share option scheme, the awards to be granted under the share plan and other benefit in-kind.

The Chairman of the RC reviews, for recommendation to the Board, the specific remuneration package for an Executive
Director or senior management staff. There are appropriate and meaningful measures in place for the purpose of assessing
the performance of Executive Directors and senior management staff.
Each member of the RC does not participate in any decision concerning his own remuneration.
Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration
The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors needed to run the company
successfully but companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for this purpose. A significant proportion of
executive directors’ remuneration should be structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance.
The Company sets remuneration packages to ensure that it is competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors and senior management of the required experience and expertise to run the Group successfully.
The Executive and Non-Executive Directors receive directors’ fees, in accordance with their level of contributions, taking
into account factors such as responsibilities, effort and time spent for serving on the Board and Board Committees. The
directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval as a lump sum payment at the AGM.
The Executive Directors of the Company, Mr Raymond Goh, Mr Jean Pers, Mr Darren Yeo and Mr Francis Wong have
entered into separate service agreements with the Company for an initial period of three years (unless otherwise terminated
by either party giving not less than six months’ notice to the other). The service agreements cover the terms of employment
and specifically, the salaries and bonuses.
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The RC is responsible for:

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

The RC comprises Mr Yeo Jeu Nam, Mr Leonard Tay and Mr Oon Thian Seng who are independent non-executive directors.
Mr Yeo Jeu Nam is the Chairman of the RC.
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Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration
Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration, and the procedure
for setting remuneration in the company’s annual report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration
policies to enable investors to understand the link between remuneration paid to directors and key executives, and
performance.
The following table shows a breakdown of the annual remuneration (in percentage terms) of directors and five key executives
of the Group for the financial year under review.

Salary
%

Performance
Incentives/ Bonus
%

Directors’ fees
%

Others Benefits
%

Total
%

11
13
18
15

87
84
79
82

2
3
3
3

-

100
100
100
100

Below S$250,000
Leonard Tay
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng

-

-

100
100
100

-

100
100
100

Key Executives
S$500,000 and above

1

S$250,000 to S$499,999

-

Below S$250,000

4

S$500,000 and above
Raymond Goh
Jean Pers
Darren Yeo
Francis Wong

It is not in the best interests of the Company to set out names of its key executives due to the sensitive nature of this
information and to prevent solicitation of key executives by the Company’s competitors.
There were no share options/awards granted during the financial year under share options scheme and share plan.
There were no employees of the Group who are immediate family members of a director or a CEO and whose remuneration
exceeds S$150,000 during the financial year ended 31 December 2007.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Principle 10: Accountability
The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the company’s performance, position and
prospects.
The Company provides the shareholders with a detailed and balanced explanation and analysis of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects on a quarterly basis. The Board is provided with appropriately detailed management
reports on a quarterly basis.
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Principle 11: Audit Committee
The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which clearly set out its authority and
duties.
The AC comprises Mr Leonard Tay, Mr Yeo Jeu Nam, Mr Oon Thian Seng and Mr Francis Wong. Save for Mr Francis Wong,
an executive director of the Company, the other three members of the AC are independent non-executive directors. Mr
Leonard Tay is the Chairman of the AC.

(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)

(j)
(k)

reviewing the audit plans of the Company’s external auditors;
reviewing the reports of the Company’s external auditors;
reviewing the co-operation given by the Company’s officers to the external auditors;
reviewing the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries before their submission to the Board;
the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the results and financial
position of the Company and the Group;
nominating the Company’s external auditors for re-appointment;
approving the Company’s internal audit plans;
reviewing interested person transaction (if any);
reviewing and considering transactions in which there may be potential conflicts of interests between the Group
and its interested persons and recommending whether those who are in a position of conflict should abstain from
participating in any discussion or deliberations of the Board or voting on resolutions of the Board or the shareholders
in relation to such transactions;
reviewing and approving procedures to hedge the exposure to foreign currency fluctuations (if any); and
reviewing the findings of internal investigations into matters where there is any suspected fraud or irregularity or
failure of internal controls or infringement of any Singapore law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to have a
material impact on the Group’s results of operation and/or financial position.

The AC has the express power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its terms of reference, has full
access to and co-operation by Management. The AC has full discretion to invite any other directors or executive directors
to attend its meetings and to ensure that adequate resources are available to enable it to discharge its function properly.
As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC has met with the external and internal auditors once separately without the
presence of Management to review any area of audit concern. Ad-hoc AC meetings may be carried out from time to time,
as circumstances require.
The Company has implemented a whistle blowing policy which will provide well-defined and accessible channels in
the Group through which employees may raise concerns about improper conduct within the Group. The AC will review
arrangements by which staff of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters. The AC’s objectives are to ensure that arrangements are in place for the independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.
The Company’s external auditors Deloitte & Touche carry out in the course of their statutory audit, a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s material internal controls focusing primarily on financial controls, to the extent set out in their
audit plan. Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses, noted during their audit, and the external auditors’
recommendations to address such non-compliance and weaknesses, would be reported to the AC. The Management, with
the assistance of the Group Internal Auditor would then follow up on Deloitte & Touche’s recommendation as part of its
role in the review of the Company’s internal control systems. The Board is satisfied that the Company’s internal controls
are adequate.
During the financial year under review, the AC has reviewed the independence of Deloitte & Touche including the volume
of all non-audit services provided to the Group, and is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice
the independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The AC is pleased to recommend the re-appointment of Deloitte
& Touche’s as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.
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(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
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The AC is responsible for:
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND AUDITS
Principle 12: Internal Controls
The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investments and the company’s assets.
The Group’s internal controls and systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the
integrity and reliability of the financial information and to safeguard and maintain the accountability of the assets.
The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal control systems maintained
by the Group’s Management and that was in place through the year and up to the date of this report, is adequate to meet
the needs of the Group in its current business environment.
Principle 13: Internal Audit
The company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits.
The internal audit function is headed by Mr Lee Kien Boon, as the Internal Auditor. The internal auditor team is expected
to meet the standards set by nationally or internationally recognized professional bodied including the Standards for the
professional Practice of Internal Auditing of the Institute of Internal Auditors.
The internal auditors’ primary line of reporting is to the Chairman of the AC. The AC will be reviewing the internal audit
plan, the scope and results of internal audit procedures during the year. The AC will review the internal auditors’ reports
and its activities on a quarterly basis. The AC is satisfied that the internal audit is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Principle 14: Communication with Shareholders
Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.
Principle 15: Greater Shareholder Participation
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow shareholders the opportunity to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.
The Board is mindful of its obligations to provide its shareholders with timely disclosure of material information presented
in a fair and objective manner.
The Company does not practice selective disclosure. In line with the continuing obligations of the Company pursuant
to the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, the Board’s policy is that all shareholders would be equally informed of all major
developments and/or transaction impacting the Group.
Quarterly results of the Company will be published through the SGXNET, news releases and the Company’s website. All
information on the Company’s new initiatives will be first disseminated via SGXNET followed by a news release, which will
also be available on the website. Price sensitive information is first publicly released, either before the Company meets
with any group of investors or analysts or simultaneously with such meetings. Results and annual reports are announced or
issued within the period prescribed by the SGX-ST and are available on the Company’s website.
The AGM of the Company is a principal forum for dialogue and interaction with all shareholders. All shareholders will
receive the annual report of the Company and notice of AGM. At the AGM, shareholders will be given the opportunity to
voice their views and to direct questions regarding the Group to the directors. The Chairman of the AC, NC and RC would
be present at the AGMs to answer any question relating to the work of these committees. The external auditors are also
present to assist the directors in addressing any relevant queries from the shareholders.
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Shareholders are given the right to vote on the resolutions at general meetings. Each item of special business included in
the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed resolution. Each distinct
issue will be carried in a separate resolution. Proxy form is sent with the notice of general meeting to all shareholders so
that those shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting in person can appoint a proxy or proxies to attend
and vote on their behalf. The Company’s Articles of Association allow a shareholder of the Company to appoint up to two
proxies to attend and vote at all general meetings on his/her behalf.
INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Save for the following contracts as disclosed in the Prospectus of the Company dated 27 October 2006, there were no
material contracts of the Company or its subsidiaries involving the interest of any director or controlling shareholder
subsisting as at the financial year under review:
(a)

(b)
(c)

the subscription agreement dated 1 October 2005 entered into between the Company and Radiant City Limited
pursuant to which Radiant City Limited subscribed for an aggregate of 3,000,000 ordinary shares in the capital of
the Company at the issue price of S$2.34 per ordinary share;
the restructuring agreement dated 25 August 2005 entered into between the Company, Mr Raymond Goh, Mr Darren
Yeo, Mr Hendrik Eddy Purnomo and Swissco International Limited; and
the supplemental restructuring agreement dated 21 April 2006 entered into between the Company, Mr Raymond
Goh, Mr Darren Yeo, Mr Hendrik Eddy Purnomo and Swissco International Limited.

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES
The Company has adopted internal regulations with respect to dealings in securities by directors and officers of the Group
that are modeled on the best practices on dealings in securities of the SGX-ST. Directors, Management and officers of the
Group who have access to price-sensitive, financial or confidential information are not permitted to deal in the Company’s
shares during the periods commencing two weeks before announcement of the Group’s quarterly results or one month
before the announcement of the Group’s yearly results and ending on the date of announcement of such result, or when
they are in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information on the Group. In addition, the officers of the Company
are advised not to deal in the Company’s securities for a short term considerations and are expected to observe the insider
trading laws at all times even when dealing in securities within the permitted trading periods.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCESSES
The Company does not have a Risk Management Committee. The senior management assumes the responsibility of the
risk management function. The senior management regularly assesses and reviews the Group’s business and operational
environment in order to identify areas of significant business and financial risks, such as credit risks, foreign exchange risks,
liquidity risks and interest rate risks, as well as appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
USE OF PLACEMENT PROCEEDS
The net proceeds of approximately US$76.57 million from the placement was utilized in 2007 for the following purposes:(i)
(ii)

approximately US$50.46 million for the expansion of its fleet of vessels for its offshore marine support services and
Engineering, Procurement, Construction, Installation and Commissioning (EPCIC) projects; and
the balance for general working capital purposes.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS
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The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely
manner to the AC and that the transactions are carried out on an arm’s length basis. There were no material interested
person transactions entered into by the Group for the financial year under review.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47
50
51
53
54
56
58
96
97
99

Report of the Directors
Independent Auditors’ Report
Balance Sheets
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement
Statements of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to Financial Statements
Statement of Directors
Statistics of Shareholdings
Notice of Annual General Meeting

REPORT OF THE DI REC T O RS

The directors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the group and balance
sheet and statement of changes in equity of the company for the financial year ended December 31, 2007.

1

DIRECTORS

2

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS
BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any arrangement
whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures in the company or any other body corporate.

3

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES
The directors of the company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share capital and
debentures of the company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by
the company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows:
Name of directors and companies
in which interests are held

Shareholdings registered
in name of director
At beginning
At end
of year
of year

Swiber Holdings Limited
(Ordinary shares)
Goh Kim Teck, Raymond
Jean Pers
Yeo Chee Neng
Wong Chin Sing, Francis
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Tay Gim Sin, Leonard

61,666,667
35,000,000
35,000,000
13,333,333
30,000
30,000
30,000

61,666,667
35,000,000
35,000,000
13,333,333
30,000
30,000
30,000

The directors’ interests and deemed interest in the shares of the company at January 21, 2008 were the same at
December 31, 2007.
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Goh Kim Teck, Raymond
Jean Pers
Yeo Chee Neng
Wong Chin Sing, Francis
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Tay Gim Sin, Leonard
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The directors of the company in office at the date of this report are:

REPORT OF THE D IREC T O RS

4

DIRECTORS’ RECEIPT AND ENTITLEMENT TO CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
Since the beginning of the financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit which is
required to be disclosed under Section 201(8) of the Singapore Companies Act, by reason of a contract made by the
company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which
he has a substantial financial interest except for salaries, bonuses and other benefits as disclosed in the financial
statements. Certain directors received remuneration from related corporations in their capacity as directors and/or
executives of those related corporations.

5

SHARE OPTIONS
(a)

Options to take up unissued shares
During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of the company or any corporation in the
group was granted.

(b)

Options exercised
During the financial year, there were no shares of the company or any corporation in the group issued by
virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

(c)

Unissued shares under option
At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the company or any corporation in the
group under options.

6

AUDIT COMMITTEE
At the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises one executive director and three non-executive and
independent directors:
Tay Gim Sin, Leonard (Chairman)
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Wong Chin Sing, Francis
The financial statements, accounting policies and system of internal accounting controls are the responsibility of the
Board of Directors acting through the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has met five times during the financial year and has reviewed the following, where relevant,
with the executive directors and the external and internal auditors of the company:
a)

the audit plans and results of the internal auditors’ examination and evaluation of the group’s systems of
internal accounting controls;

b)

the group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies;

c)

the financial statements of the company and the consolidated financial statements of the group before their
submission to the directors of the company and external auditors’ report on those financial statements;

d)

the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the results and
financial position of the company and the group;

REPORT OF THE DI REC T O RS

6

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)
e)

the co-operation and assistance given by the management to the group’s external auditors; and

f)

the re-appointment of the external auditors of the group.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has been given the
resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It also has full discretion to invite any director and
executive officer to attend its meetings. The external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Deloitte & Touche, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Goh Kim Teck, Raymond

Wong Chin Sing, Francis

March 18, 2008
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The Audit Committee has recommended to the directors the nomination of Deloitte & Touche for re-appointment
as external auditors of the group at the forthcoming AGM of the company.

I NDEPENDENT A UDIT O RS ’ REPO RT
To the Members of Swiber Holdings Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swiber Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “group”) which comprise the balance sheets of the group and of the company as at December 31, 2007, the profit
and loss statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement of the group and the statement of changes
in equity of the company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes, as set out on pages 51 to 95.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION
In our opinion,
a)

the consolidated financial statements of the group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of
the company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at December
31, 2007 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the group and changes in equity of the company for
the year ended on that date; and

b)

the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company and by those subsidiaries
incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions
of the Act.

Deloitte & Touche
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
Partner

March 18, 2008

BAL ANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007

Group

Company

Note

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

7
8

97,686
100,714
224
26,067
224,691
10,919
235,610

11,489
28,927
3,753
44,169
3,564
47,733

24,451
815
128,566
153,832
153,832

128
58
1,142
1,328
1,328

112,900
3,698
4,448
11,591
1,762
18
13
134,430

38,582
2,855
1,800
19
11
43,267

1,643
33,635
339
1,762
37,379

402
33,546
33,948

370,040

91,000

191,211

35,276

14,434
43,946
49,221
80
2,049
109,730

4,376
19,736
10,168
49
261
34,590

7,561
39
2
7,602

1,508
39
4
1,551

Non-current assets held for sale
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Subsidiaries
Associate
Joint venture
Other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets

9
10
11

12
13
14
15
9
16
17

Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Bank loans
Trade payables
Other payables
Current portion of finance leases
Amount due to subsidiaries
Income tax payable
Total current liabilities

18
19
20
21
10
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Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Trade receivables
Inventory
Other receivables
Amount due from subsidiaries
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Assets

BA L ANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007

Group
Note

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Bonds
Finance leases
Employee benefits liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Capital, reserves and minority interests
Share capital
Hedging reserve
Translation reserve
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the company
Minority interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

18
22
21
17

23
24

Company

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

10,122
71,147
617
67
878
82,831

6,409
427
40
489
7,365

71,147
317
71,464

335
335

108,205
1,762
452
66,453

31,634
49
16,784

108,205
1,762
2,178

31,634
1,756

176,872
607
177,479

48,467
578
49,045

112,145
112,145

33,390
33,390

370,040

91,000

191,211

35,276

CONSOL I DATED PRO FIT AN D LO S S S TAT EM EN T
Year ended December 31, 2007

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

25

151,177

66,772

Cost of sales

(108,338)

(51,462)

Gross profit

42,839

15,310

28,147
(16,638)
(274)
1,673
(3,736)

3,602
(4,731)
(1,030)
377
(550)

52,011

12,978

Revenue

Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Share of profit of associate and joint venture
Finance costs

26

14, 15
27

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

28

(2,305)

(838)

Profit for the year

29

49,706

12,140

49,669

12,129

37

11

49,706

12,140

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company
Minority interests

Earnings per share (in US cents):
Basic

30

12.56

4.32

Diluted

30

12.56

4.32

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Group

STATEMENTS OF C HAN GES IN EQUIT Y
Year ended December 31, 2007

Share
capital
US$’000

Share
premium
US$’000

9,001

2,412

Hedging
reserve
US$’000

Group
Balance at January 1, 2006
Profit for the year
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Total recognised income and expense for the year
Transfer from share premium account
Issue of new shares pursuant to the restructuring exercise
Issue of share capital pursuant to Initial Public Offering
Share issue expenses (1)
Increase of share capital of subsidiary
Balance at December 31, 2006
Profit for the year
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (2)
Gain on cashflow hedges (2)
Total recognised income and expense for the year
Issue of shares pursuant to Private Placement
Share issue expenses
Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries
Balance at December 31, 2007

-

-

-

-

2,412
951
21,390
(2,120)
31,634

(2,412)
-

-

-

-

1,762
1,762

78,569
(1,998)
108,205

-

1,762

Share
capital
US$’000

Share
premium
US$’000

Hedging
reserve
US$’000

9,001

2,412

-

-

-

-

2,412
951
21,390
(2,120)
31,634

(2,412)
-

-

-

-

1,762
1,762

78,569
(1,998)
108,205

-

1,762

Company
Balance at January 1, 2006
Profit for the year
Exchange differences
Total recognised income and expense for the year
Transfer from share premium
Issue of new shares pursuant to the restructuring exercise
Issue of shares pursuant to Initial Public Offering
Share issue expenses (1)
Balance at December 31, 2006
Profit for the year
Gain on cashflow hedges (2)
Total recognised income and expense for the year
Issue of shares pursuant to Private Placement
Share issue expenses
Balance at December 31, 2007
(1)

(2)

Share issue expenses in 2006 included professional fee of US$221,000 (2007 : US$ Nil) paid to Deloitte & Touche Singapore and overseas members firms
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
Items recognised directly in equity.

STATEMENTS OF CH ANGES IN EQUIT Y
Year ended December 31, 2007

Minority
interests
US$’000

Total
US$’000

(168)

4,655

15,900

498

16,398

217
217

12,129
12,129

12,129
217
12,346

11
42
53

12,140
259
12,399

49

16,784

951
21,390
(2,120)
48,467

27
578

951
21,390
(2,120)
27
49,045

403
403

49,669
49,669

49,669
403
1,762
51,834

37
(18)
19

49,706
385
1,762
51,853

452

66,453

78,569
(1,998)
176,872

10
607

78,569
(1,998)
10
177,479

Translation
reserve
US$’000

Retained
earnings
US$’000

Total
US$’000

24

1,729

13,166

(24)
(24)

5
22
27

5
(2)
3

-

1,756

951
21,390
(2,120)
33,390

-

422
422

422
1,762
2,184

-

2,178

78,569
(1,998)
112,145
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Retained
earnings
US$’000
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Translation
reserve
US$’000

Equity attributable to
equity holders of the
company
US$’000

CONSOL I DATED CAS H FLO W S TAT EM EN T
Year ended December 31, 2007

Group
Note

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

Operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Allowance for doubtful debts
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
Provision for employee benefits
Negative goodwill
Share of profit of associate and joint venture
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

52,011

12,978

(1,549)
55
3,736
2,675
72
(2,381)
(21,686)
27
(2,018)
(1,673)
29,269

(52)
107
550
1,091
(1,052)
8
(377)
13,253

Trade receivables
Inventory
Other receivables
Other assets
Trade payables
Other payables
Cash (used in) generated from operations

(69,297)
164
(33,843)
2
23,684
37,664
(12,357)

(23,655)
90
15
15,119
8,008
12,830

Income taxes paid
Interest paid
Net cash (used in) from operating activities

(742)
(3,736)
(16,835)

(513)
(498)
11,819

Investing activities
Interest received
Dividend received from associate
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of assets held for sale
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (Note A)
Additions to non-current assets held for sale
Acquisition of subsidiary
Investment in a joint venture
Net cash used in investing activities

1,549
24,350
99,050
(92,051)
(84,719)
(5,206)
(1,818)
(58,845)

52
300
8,327
(33,330)
(2,015)
(1,800)
(28,466)

33

CONSOL I DATED CAS H FLO W S TAT EM ENT
Year ended December 31, 2007

Group

Net effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
consolidation of subsidiaries
Net increase in cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

7

2006
US$’000

(19,533)
(13,008)
71,147
78,569
(1,998)
(15)
33,304
148,466

(1,201)
(1,523)
(2,013)
27
22,341
(2,120)
(11)
7,615
23,115

403

235

73,189
9,443
82,632

6,703
2,740
9,443

Note to the cash flow statement
A.

During the financial year, the group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of US$92,288,000
(2006 : US$33,817,000) of which US$237,000 (2006 : US$487,000) were acquired under finance lease arrangements.
Cash payments of US$92,051,000 (2006 : US$33,330,000) were made to purchase property, plant and equipment.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of bank loans
Pledged deposits
Minority interest contribution for increase in share capital of subsidiary
Proceeds on issue of bonds
Proceeds on issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Repayment of obligations under finance leases
New bank loans raised
Net cash from financing activities

2007
US$’000
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Note

NOTES TO F I NA NCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

1

GENERAL
The company (Registration No. 200414721N) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal place of business and
registered office at 12 International Business Park, #04-01 Cyber Hub @ IBP, Singapore 609920. The company is
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The financial statements are expressed in United
States dollars, which is the company’s functional currency and presentation currency of the group.
The principal activity of the company is that of investment holding and provision of corporate services.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries, associate and joint venture are disclosed in Notes 13, 14 and 15
respectively.
The consolidated financial statements of the group and balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of
the company for the year ended December 31, 2007 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
March 18, 2008.

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - In the current financial year, the group has adopted all the
new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does
not result in changes to the group’s and company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior years except as disclosed below and in the notes to the financial statements.
(a)

FRS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures and amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
relating to capital disclosures
The group has adopted FRS 107 with effect from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007. The
new Standard has resulted in an expansion of the disclosures in these financial statements regarding the
group’s financial instruments. The group has also presented information regarding its objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital (see Note 4) as required by the amendments to FRS 1 which are effective
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007.
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to
FRS that are relevant to the group and the company were issued but not effective:
FRS 23
FRS 108
INT FRS 111

-

Borrowing Costs (Revised)
Operating Segments
FRS 102 - Group and Treasury Transactions

Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of these new/revised
standards.
The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above FRSs and INT FRSs in future periods will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the company and the group in the period of their initial
adoption.

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the company and entities controlled by the company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and
loss statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s
equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination (see below) and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity
are allocated against the interests of the group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover its share of those losses.
In the company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment in
net recoverable value that has been recognised in the profit and loss statement.
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - Except for those companies under restructuring in prior years accounted for
in accordance with the principles of merger accounting, the acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date
of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under FRS 103 - Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for
non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 - NonCurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value
less costs to sell.
Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss statement.
The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the group’s balance
sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the group.
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NOTES TO F I NA NCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial assets
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. Income and expense is recognised on an effective
interest rate basis for debt instruments.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as “loans and receivables”. Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
method, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
impacted. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
Derecognition of financial assets
The group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash placed with banks, cash on hand, time deposits and pledged cash
placed with banks that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, with interest expense recognised on
an effective yield basis, if the effect is material.
Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in
accordance with the group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see below).
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and
foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps. Further
details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. The group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or
hedges of foreign currency risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in
foreign operations.
A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other
derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.
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60/61

2

NOTES TO F I NA NCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Hedge accounting
The group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of foreign currency
risk as cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash
flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.
Note 16 contain details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes. Movements
in the hedging reserve in equity are also detailed in the statement of changes in equity.
Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow
hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as part of other gains and losses.
Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a nonfinancial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred
from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain
or loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
ENGINEERING AND SHIPBUILDING CONTRACTS - Where the outcome of an engineering and shipbuilding
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred
for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.
Where the outcome of an engineering and shipbuilding contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
LEASES - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
The group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
SALE AND LEASEBACK - If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales
proceeds over the carrying amount is immediately recognised as income.
If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction is
established at fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair value, any
profit or loss is recognised immediately except that, if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments
at below market price, it is deferred and amortised in proportion to the lease payments over the period
for which the asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value is
deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.
For operating leases, if the fair value at the time of a sale and leaseback transaction is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, a loss equal to the amount of the difference between the carrying amount and fair value
is recognised immediately.
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
INVENTORIES - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.
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Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost, other than construction-in-progress, over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:
Leasehold property
Vessels
Transportation equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Motor vehicles
Drydocking expenditure
Cranes and machineries

-

Over the term of the lease which is 99 years
15 to 20 years
3 to 8 years
3 to 5 years
10 years
21/2 years
20 years

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, if there is no certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the asset shall be fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.
The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in the
profit and loss statement.
IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE ASSETS - At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss statement.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss statement.
ASSOCIATE - An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss statement.
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES - A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the group and
other party undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, that is when the strategic financial
and operating policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
The results and assets and liabilities of the joint venture are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting (as described above).
PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.
Charter hire income
Charter hire income from vessels, derived from the offshore marine support business, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the charter agreement.
Rendering of service
Engineering, shipbuilding and repair work income from short-term contracts is recognised when service is
rendered.
Revenue from engineering and shipbuilding contracts from long-term contracts are recognised in accordance
with the group’s accounting policy on engineering and shipbuilding contracts (see above).

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associate are carried in the balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of the net assets of the associate,
less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the group’s
net investment in the associate) are not recognised, unless the group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.
Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established.
BORROWING COSTS - Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit and loss statement in the period in which they are
incurred.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as
the Singapore Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the
group’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan.
EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the profit and loss statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible. The group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted in
countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associated company, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the profit and loss statement.
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The individual financial statements of each
group entity are measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (its functional currency). The consolidated financial statements of the group and the balance
sheet of the company are presented in United States dollars, which is the functional currency of the company
and presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are
included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in
equity.
For the purpose of presenting financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group’s foreign operations
(including comparatives) are expressed in United States dollars using exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items (including comparatives) are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
(including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the management is of the
opinion that there are no critical judgements involved that will have significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below:
Recoverability of receivables
Management considered the recoverability of its trade and other receivables of the group with carrying amount
of US$100,714,000 (2006 : US$28,927,000) and US$37,658,000 (2006 : US$3,753,000) respectively and are confident
that the carrying amount of the trade and other receivables will be recovered and adjustment will be made in future
period in the event that there is objective evidence of impairment resulting from future loss events.
Impairment of investment in associate and joint venture
Determining whether the investments in associate and joint venture amounting to US$3,698,000 (2006 : US$2,855,000)
and US$4,448,000 (2006 : US$1,800,000) respectively are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
investments. The value in use calculation requires the company to estimate the future cash flows expected from
the cash-generating units and an appropriate discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the future cash
flows. Management has evaluated the recoverability of the investments based on such estimates and is confident
that no allowance for impairment is necessary.
Amounts due from engineering and shipbuilding contracts and revenue recognition
As discussed in Note 2, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity, as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs. The costs of uncompleted contracts are computed based on the estimates of total contract
costs for the respective contracts.
Management has performed the cost studies, taking into account the costs to date and costs to complete on each
contract. Management has also reviewed the status of such contracts and is satisfied that the cost estimates to
complete, the total contract costs and the profitability are realistic.
Based on the above studies, management is of the opinion that revenue and related costs, and amounts due from
engineering and shipbuilding contracts are reasonable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Sale and leaseback transactions

4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

(a)

Categories of financial instruments
The financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
Group

Company
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

1,762

-

1,762

-

229,699

44,082

153,832

1,328

168,551

35,157

71,876

398

Financial assets
Derivative instruments in designated
hedge accounting relationships
Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, such as market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow interest rate risk, and fair value risk.
The group uses a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
currency risk, including cross currency and interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates.
The group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
There has been no change to the group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk, other than the use of swap arrangements in 2007. Market risk exposures are measured using
sensitivity analysis indicated below.
Foreign exchange risk management
The group transacts business in various foreign currencies, including the Singapore Dollar, Indonesian Rupiah,
Malaysian Ringgit, Euro and Brunei Dollar and therefore is exposed to foreign exchange risk.

68/69

Management was further required to assess the fair value of the vessels at the point of the sale and leaseback
transactions in order to determine whether the transactions were contracted at above or below fair value.
Management has obtained expert third party valuation reports for each of the vessel transactions, which it believes
are reliable for determining the fair values at the point of disposal and has accounted for those transactions in
accordance with the policy for sale and leaseback transactions included in Note 2.
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During the year, the group has entered in to a number of sale and leaseback transactions in relation to its vessels.
Based on the terms and conditions of the arrangements, management believes that the subsequent lease
agreements result in operating leases, rather than finance leases.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
The group has foreign subsidiaries whose net assets are exposed to currency translation risk. Management does
not regard its currency translation exposure to be significant.
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in currencies
other than the respective group entities’ functional currencies are as follows:
Group
Liabilities
Assets
2006
2006
2007
2007
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000
United States
dollars
Singapore
dollars
Brunei dollars
Malaysian
ringgits
Euros

Company
Liabilities
Assets
2006
2006
2007
2007
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000

2,696

2,862

39,877

21,439

-

-

-

-

16,744
1,716

4,471
-

6,491
568

1,123
-

909
-

646
-

1,767
-

240
-

647
2,538

191
1,427

-

12
13

-

-

-

-

The company has a number of investments in Singapore and foreign subsidiaries, whose net assets are exposed
to currency translation risk. The group does not currently designate its foreign currency denominated debt as a
hedging instrument for the purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign operations.
Further details on the forward exchange derivative hedging instruments are found in Note 16 to the financial
statements.
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the relevant foreign currencies against
the functional currency of each group entity. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans where they gave rise to an impact on the group’s profit or loss.
If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against the functional currency of each group entity, profit or loss
will increase (decrease) by:
Singapore dollar impact
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000

Malaysian ringgit impact
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000

Group
Profit or loss

552

335

(1,544)

22

If the relevant foreign currency strengthens by 10% against the functional currency of each group entity, profit or
loss and other equity will increase (decrease) by:
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
Singapore dollar impact
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000

Malaysian ringgit impact
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000

Group
Profit or loss

(552)

(335)

1,544

(22)

The company is not exposed to significant foreign currency sensitivities as the majority of its transactions are
denominated in its functional currency.
Interest rate risk management
The group has exposure to interest rate risk through the impact of floating interest rate on cash equivalents and
borrowings. The group entered into swap arrangements to manage the interest rate exposure (Note 16). The
group obtained financing through bank loans and the details of the group’s interest rate exposure is disclosed in
Note 18.
Interest rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives
and non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating
rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates.
If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the group’s
profit for the year ended December 31, 2007 would increase/decrease by US$37,000 (2006: decrease/increase by
US$27,000). This is mainly attributable to the group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
The group’s sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current period mainly due to the reduction in
variable rate debt instruments and the increase in interest rate swaps.
The company’s profit and loss and equity are not affected by changes in interest rates as it does not hold any bank
borrowings other than the bonds, which have been swapped for a fixed interest rate (Note 16).
Credit risk management
The group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables. The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is
an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the
cash flows.
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This is mainly attributable to the group’s exposure to outstanding cash and bank balances, receivable and payable
balances at year end.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
The group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers, except as disclosed in Notes 8 and 9.
Liquidity risk management
The group maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents, and internally generated cash flows to finance their
activities. The group minimises liquidity risk by keeping committed credit lines available. Undrawn facilities are
disclosed in Note 18.
Non-derivative financial liabilities
The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the group and company can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The
adjustment column represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the maturity
analysis which is not included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on the balance sheet.
Weighted
On
average demand or
effective
within
interest rate
1 year
%
US$’000

Within
2 to
5 years
US$’000

After
5 years
US$’000

Adjustment
US$’000

Total
US$’000

Group
2007
Non-interest bearing
Finance lease liability (fixed rate)
Variable interest rate instruments
Fixed interest rate instruments

6.5
6.9
6.7

72,151
102
17,162
2,942
92,357

407
49,156
41,110
90,673

383
492
875

(195)
(8,157)
(7,002)
(15,354)

72,151
697
58,161
37,542
168,551

2006
Non-interest bearing
Finance lease liability (fixed rate)
Variable interest rate instruments

6.5
7.1

23,896
67
4,938
28,901

510
7,079
7,589

57
57

(158)
(1,232)
(1,390)

23,896
476
10,785
35,157

Company
2007
Non-interest bearing
Finance lease liability (fixed rate)
Variable interest rate instruments
Fixed interest rate instruments

6.5
6.8
6.8

373
53
2,408
2,430
5,264

211
39,430
39,796
79,437

218
218

(126)
(6,429)
(6,488)
(13,043)

373
356
35,409
35,738
71,876

2006
Non-interest bearing
Finance lease liability (fixed rate)

6.5

24
53
77

440
440

-

(119)
(119)

24
374
398
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Non-derivative financial assets

Weighted
On
average demand or
effective
within
interest rate
1 year
%
US$’000

Within
2 to
5 years
US$’000

After
5 years
US$’000

Adjustment
US$’000

Total
US$’000

Group
2007
Non-interest bearing
Fixed interest rate instruments

3.7

183,718
37,558
221,276

1,239
1,239

10,089
10,089

(2,905)
(2,905)

183,718
45,981
229,699

2006
Non-interest bearing
Fixed interest rate instruments

3.6

42,036
2,052
44,088

-

-

(6)
(6)

42,036
2,046
44,082

Company
2007
Non-interest bearing
Fixed interest rate instruments

3.8

131,755
22,147
153,902

-

-

(70)
(70)

131,755
22,077
153,832

-

1,328

-

-

-

1,328

2006
Non-interest bearing
Derivative financial instruments

The group’s derivative financial instruments comprise of a cross currency interest rate swap, which is payable in 2010
(Note 16).
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and payables, provision and
other liabilities approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair values of the other classes of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial statements.
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
•
•
•

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; and
the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis; and
the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, discounted cash flow analysis is used, based on the applicable yield curve of the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.
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The following table details the expected maturity for non-derivative financial assets. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be
earned on those assets except where the group and the company anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a
different period. The adjustment column represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument
included in the maturity analysis which are not included in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the balance
sheet.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

(c)

Capital risk management policies and objectives

The group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Notes 18, 21, and
22, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the company, comprising issued capital,
reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Notes 23 and 24.
The group’s overall strategy with regards to capital risk management remains unchanged from 2006.
5

RELATED COMPANY TRANSACTIONS
Some of the company’s transactions and arrangements are between members of the group and the effect of these
on the basis determined between the parties is reflected in these financial statements. The intercompany balances
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated.
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related companies of the company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

6

OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties are entities with common direct or indirect shareholders and/or directors. Parties are considered to
be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party
in making financial and operating decisions.
Some of the company’s transactions and arrangements are with related parties and the effect of these on the basis
determined between the parties is reflected in these financial statements. The balances are unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated.
During the year, the group entered into the following transactions with related parties:
Revenue

Shareholder of the group
Associate
Joint venture

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

1,111
105

213
141
-

Cost of sales
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000
2,694
-

1,699
-
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OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
Compensation of directors and key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

7,364
24
7,388

2,214
8
2,222

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
7

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Group

Cash at bank
Fixed deposits
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents
Pledged cash placed with banks

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

60,530
22,077
25
82,632
15,054
97,686

9,440
3
9,443
2,046
11,489

Company
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000
128
128
128

2,373
22,077
1
24,451
24,451

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair values.
Fixed deposits bear interest at an average rate of 3.8% (2006 : 3.6%) per annum and for a tenure of approximately 30
days (2006 : 30 days). Cash amounting to US$15,054,000 (2006 : US$2,046,000) is pledged by the group as collateral
for bankers’ guarantee.
8

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Group

Outside parties
Amounts due from engineering contracts
Others
Related parties (Note 6)
Amounts due from shipbuilding contracts
Others

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses to date)
Less: Progress billings

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

47,139
44,635
91,774

7,869
21,019
28,888

8,645
295
8,940
100,714

39
39
28,927

117,096
(61,312)
55,784

46,792
(38,923)
7,869

74/75

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

2006
US$’000
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Group
2007
US$’000
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from third parties of US$206,000 (2006 :
US$107,000). This allowance has been determined by reference to past default experience.
The average credit period on engineering and service contracts is 30 days (2006: 30 days). No interest is charged
on trade receivables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged at 1% (2006:
1%) per month on the outstanding balance.
Included in the group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of US$17.4 million (2006:
US$7.5 million) which are past due at the reporting date for which the group has not provided as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is 150 days (2006 : 60 days).
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk
is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated, except for one debtor which accounts for 35% of
trade receivables. Management believes that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts.
The group’s trade receivables due from related parties are interest-free and repayable on demand and the average
age of these receivables is less than 30 days. The company has not made any provision as management is of the
view that these receivables are recoverable.
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
Group

As at beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Translation difference
As at end of the year
9

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

107
55
44
206

107
107

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
2007
US$’000
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables from outside parties
Related parties (Note 6)
Less: Non-current portion

9,441
27,526
691
37,658
(11,591)
26,067

Company
2006
US$’000
733
3,010
10
3,753
3,753

2007
US$’000
1,052
102
1,154
(339)
815

2006
US$’000
16
42
58
58

Other receivables from outside parties include US$14,093,000 (2006: US$ Nil) of amounts due from disposal of
assets held for sale.
Non-current portion of the group’s other receivables includes an amount due from outside parties of US$8,850,000
which bears fixed interest rate at 3.5% per annum and will be repayable within eight to ten years.
In determining the recoverability of other receivables, the group considers any change in the credit quality of the
other receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The majority of credit risk for
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OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
other receivables relates to a few customers. Management has assessed the credit worthiness of those customers
and accordingly, they believe that there is no provision required for doubtful debts.

10

AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES
The amount due from and to subsidiaries represents advances made to subsidiaries and expenses paid on behalf
by subsidiaries. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are expected to be repaid within twelve months from
the balance sheet date.
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
During 2007 and 2006, the directors resolved to dispose certain vessels under construction which were initially
planned for its offshore marine support operations. These assets attributable to the offshore marine support
operations are still under construction as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the group has entered into sale and
purchase agreements to dispose of the assets within twelve months and therefore have been classified as a disposal
asset held for sale and are presented separately in the balance sheet.

12
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The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and, accordingly,
no impairment loss has been recognised on the classification of these assets as held for sale.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Furniture
ConstructionCranes & Leasehold Transportation Motor and office
in-progress Vessels Drydocking Machineries property equipment vehicles equipment
US$’000

US$’000

US$’000

356
18,656

13,164
12,845

137

-

26
(7,515)

At December 31, 2006

19,012

Additions

US$’000

US$’000

US$’000

-

-

123
-

-

-

-

18,520

137

-

48,896

27,387

944

(9,677)
58,231

836
11
(22,215)
9,677
34,216

-

582
810
8
(240)
1,160

US$’000

Total

US$’000

US$’000

542

156
1,637

13,799
33,817

10
-

-

3
-

39
(7,515)

-

133

542

1,796

40,140

7,499

89

1

855

6,617

92,288

1,081

845
(140)
8,204

5,065
(65)
5,089

(4)
130

(195)
1,202

4
4

-

-

47
17
4
68

28
28

Cost:
At January 1, 2006
Additions
Exchange
differences
Disposals

Acquired on
acquisition
of a subsidiary
Exchange differences
Disposals
Written off
Transfer
At December 31, 2007
Accumulated
depreciation:
At January 1, 2006
Depreciation
Exchange differences
Disposal
At December 31, 2006

-

6,746
(8)
(1)
(9) (22,419)
(175)
(380)
8,221 116,374

63
232
3
298

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

11

692
1,091
15
(240)
1,558
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Group
Furniture
ConstructionCranes & Leasehold Transportation Motor and office
in-progress Vessels Drydocking Machineries property equipment vehicles equipment
US$’000

US$’000

-

806
(304)
(5)
1,657

118
122

252
(136)
116

339
(64)
6
281

14
(2)
80

434
(146)
316

58,231
19,012

32,559
17,360

959
133

8,088
-

4,808
-

50
65

886
514

Depreciation
Disposal
Written off
Exchange differences
At December 31, 2007

US$’000

US$’000

US$’000

US$’000

US$’000

US$’000

712
(108)
902

Total
US$’000

2,675
(450)
(308)
(1)
3,474

Carrying amount:
At December 31, 2007
At December 31, 2006

7,319 112,900
1,498 38,582

Company
Motor
vehicles
US$’000
Cost:
At January 1, 2006
Additions
At December 31, 2006
Additions
At December 31, 2007

Furniture and
office
equipment
US$’000

Total
US$’000

428
428
428

1
1
1,394
1,395

429
429
1,394
1,823

27
27
43
70

110
110

27
27
153
180

Carrying amount:
At December 31, 2007

358

1,285

1,643

At December 31, 2006

401

1

402

Accumulated depreciation:
At January 1, 2006
Depreciation
At December 31, 2006
Depreciation
At December 31, 2007

The carrying amount of the group’s and company’s property, plant and equipment includes an amount of US$735,000
(2006 : US$514,000) and US$358,000 (2006 : US$401,000) respectively in respect of assets held under finance leases
(Note 21).
The group has pledged certain vessels, furniture and office equipment having a carrying amount of approximately
US$25,336,000 (2006 : US$16,896,000) to secure banking bank loans granted to the group.
The group’s property, plant and equipment includes capitalised borrowing costs of US$110,000 (2006 : US$13,000).
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SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000
Unquoted equity shares, at cost

33,635

33,546

Name of subsidiary

Swiber Offshore Construction
Pte Ltd (1)
(Formerly known as
Apecs Offshore Pte Ltd)

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting
power held
Principal activity
2007
2006
%
%

Singapore

100

100

Offshore marine engineering

Swiber Engineering Ltd (2)
(Formerly known as
Apecs Engineering Limited)

Malaysia

100

100

Offshore marine engineering and
vessel chartering

PT Swiber Berjaya (3)
(Formerly known as
PT Swisko Berjaya)

Indonesia

80

80

Vessel owning and chartering

Swiber Marine (Malaysia)
Sdn Bhd (2)

Malaysia

100

100

Vessel chartering

Swiber Offshore Marine Pte Ltd (1)
(Formerly known as
Swiber Offshore Pte Ltd)

Singapore

100

100

Vessel owning and chartering

Swiber Offshore Drilling Pte Ltd (1) (5)

Singapore

90

-

Deep water drilling

Black Gold Drilling Pte Ltd (1) (5)

Singapore

90

-

Deep water drilling

Kreuz International Pte Ltd (1) (5)

Singapore

100

-

Investment holding & provision of
corporate service

PT Swiber Offshore (3) (5)

Indonesia

99.5

-

Offshore marine engineering

India

100

-

Operator & charterer of vessels

Swiber Offshore (India) Pte Ltd (4) (5)
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Details of the company’s subsidiaries at the year end are as follows:
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SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Name of subsidiary

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting
power held
Principal activity
2007
2006
%
%

Held by Kreuz International Pte Ltd
Kreuz Shipbuilding & Engineering
Pte Ltd (1) (6)
(Formerly known as
North Shipyard Pte Ltd)

Singapore

100

-

Building of ships, tankers & other
ocean-going vessels

Malaysia

100

-

Offshore marine engineering &
vessel chartering

Singapore

100

-

Vessel owning and chartering

Swiber Marine Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

100

100

Vessel chartering

Swiber Maritime Limited (4)

Republic of
Seychelles

100

100

Holding the Seychelles-flagged
vessel on trust for Swiber Offshore
Marine Pte Ltd

Kreuz Engineering Limited (2) (5)

Kreuz Offshore Marine Pte Ltd (1) (5)
Held by Swiber Offshore Marine
Pte Ltd

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

14

Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Singapore
Audited by overseas practices of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Audited by Ernst & Young, Indonesia
Not required to be audited under local law of incorporation and subsidiary considered immaterial
Newly incorporated during 2007
Acquired on August 6, 2007 (Note 33)

ASSOCIATE
Group

Cost of investment in associate
Share of post-acquisition profit, net of dividend received

Investment in associate includes goodwill of US$1,307,000 (2006 : US$1,307,000).

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

2,147
1,551
3,698

2,147
708
2,855
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ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)
Details of the group’s associate at the year end are as follows:

OBT Holdings Pte Ltd (1)

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting
power held
Principal activity
2007
2006
%
%

Singapore

30

30

Investment holding

Finesse Shipping Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

30

30

Ship owning and ship chartering

Accius Trading Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

30

30

Ship owning and ship chartering

Offshore Bulk International
Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

30

30

Ship leasing and ship chartering

Held by OBT Holdings Pte Ltd

(1)

Audited by Grant Thornton, Singapore.

Summarised financial information in respect of the group’s associate, OBT Holdings Group, is set out below:
Group
2007
US$’000
Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

2006
US$’000

14,345
(5,249)
9,096

10,311
(4,414)
5,897

Group’s share of associate’s net assets

2,729

1,769

Revenue

6,224

4,054

Profit for the year

2,810

1,257

843

377

Group’s share of associate’s profit for the year
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Name of associate

Country of
incorporation
and operation

80/81

14

NOTES TO F I NA NCIAL S TAT EM EN T S
December 31, 2007

15

JOINT VENTURE
The group has a 50% equity shareholding with equivalent voting power, in Swiwar Offshore Pte Ltd, a joint venture
incorporated in November 2006 in Singapore. The principal activity of the joint venture is those of shipowners,
operators and charterers. The joint venture is audited by Deloitte & Touche, Singapore.
Summarised financial information in respect of the group’s joint venture, Swiwar Offshore Pte Ltd, is set out below:
Group
2007
US$’000
Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

43,744
(34,849)
8,895

7,015
(3,416)
3,599

Group’s share of joint venture’s net assets

4,448

1,800

Profit / (Loss) for the year

1,660

(1)

830

-

Group’s share of joint venture’s profit for the year

16

2006
US$’000

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The group utilises a cross currency interest rate swap contract to hedge significant future transactions and cash
flows on its fixed and floating rate bonds (Note 22). The group has swapped the S$54.0 million notes with 3 year
fixed rate of 4.34% per annum to US$35.4 million with fixed rate of 6.8% per annum and the S$54.5 million notes with
3 year floating rate of 1.4% above the three month Singapore dollar swap offer rate per annum to US$35.7 million
with fixed rate of 6.8% per annum.
The fair value of swaps entered into at December 31, 2007 is estimated at US$1,762,000 (2006 : US$Nil). These
amounts are based on quoted market prices for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date. All of these
interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair value thereof has been deferred
in equity.
All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are
designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the group’s cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest
rates on borrowings.
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DEFERRED TAX
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group, and the movements thereon,
during the current and prior reporting periods:

18

(9)
(1)
(2)
(12)
(12)

(15)
8
(7)
1
(6)

(24)
(1)
6
(19)
1
(18)

114
(1)
376
489
389
878

114
(1)
376
489
389
878

BANK LOANS
Group

Bank loans
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year
In the second year
In the third year
In the fourth year
In the fifth year
After the fifth year
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

24,556

10,785

14,434
2,992
2,893
2,512
1,303
422
24,556

4,376
1,945
1,945
1,690
829
10,785

(14,434)
10,122

(4,376)
6,409

The group has eleven principal bank loans (2006 : seven) with various repayment terms with the earliest commencing
in October 2005 and continuing to October 2010 and the latest commencing in August 2007 and continuing to July
2012.
The loans are subjected to interest rates ranging from 4.50% to 16.75% (2006 : 6.60% to 16.75%) per annum, and
the interest rate is subjected to change according to prevailing market conditions and/or at bank’s discretion and it
therefore exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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At January 1, 2006
Adjustment
(Credit) Charge to profit or loss for the year
At December 31, 2006
(Credit) Charge to profit or loss for the year
At December 31, 2007

Accelerated Deferred
Deferred
tax
tax
tax asset depreciation liabilities
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000
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Employee Allowance
benefit for debts
US$’000
US$’000
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BANK LOANS (Cont’d)
The management estimates the fair value of the group’s borrowings, by discounting their future cash flows at the
market rate, to be as follows:
Group

Bank loans

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

26,176

11,799

The bank loans are secured by:
(i)

First legal mortgage over certain vessels, apartments, furniture and office equipment.

(ii)

Assignment of all marine insurances in respect of the vessels mentioned above.

(iii)

Assignment of earnings/charter proceeds in respect of the vessels mentioned above.

At December 31, 2007, the group had available US$2,800,000 (2006 : US$2,040,000) of undrawn borrowing facilities
in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met.

19

TRADE PAYABLES
Group

Outside parties

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

43,946

19,736

The average credit period on purchases of goods and services is 30 days (2006 : 30 days). No interest is charged on
the outstanding balance. The group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
within the credit timeframe.
Trade creditors principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.
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OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals
Bills payable
Deposits received from customers
Other payables

2006
US$’000

21,016
20,954
7,251
49,211

6,008
3,750
410
10,168

Company
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000
7,190
371
7,561

1,488
20
1,508

Bills payable carried market interest rates and were settled during 2007.
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FINANCE LEASES

Minimum
lease payments
2007
2006
US$’000
US$’000

Present value
of minimum
lease payments
2007
2006
US$’000
US$’000

Group
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After fifth year
Total
Less: Future finance charges
Present value of lease obligations
Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

102
407
383
892
(195)
697

67
510
57
634
(158)
476

80
350
267
697

49
380
47
476

(80)
617

(49)
427
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Group
2007
US$’000
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FINANCE LEASES (Cont’d)

Minimum
lease payments
2007
2006
US$’000
US$’000

Present value
of minimum
lease payments
2007
2006
US$’000
US$’000

Company
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After fifth year
Total
Less: Future finance charges
Present value of lease obligations
Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

53
211
218
482
(126)
356

53
440
493
(119)
374

39
187
130
356

39
335
374

(39)
317

(39)
335

The average lease term is 10 years. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the average effective borrowing rate
was 6.5% per annum (2006 : 6.5%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date, and thus expose the company to
fair value interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into
for contingent rental payments. The lease obligations are denominated in Singapore dollars. The fair value of the
group’s and company’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amounts.
The group’s and company’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the lease assets.
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BONDS
Group and Company
2006
2007
US$’000
US$’000
Notes due in August 2010
Fixed rate
Floating rate

35,738
35,409
71,147

-

During the year, the company established a Multicurrency Medium Term Notes Programme (MTN Programme) to
issue up to S$300 million fixed or floating rate notes. As at December 31, 2007, the company has issued two series
of notes maturing in 2010 amounting to S$108.5 million (equivalent to US$71,147,000). These are denominated in
Singapore dollars. The term of the bonds and interest rate are disclosed in Note 16.
Simultaneously, a cross currency interest rate swap contract was established in relation to the MTN Programme for
the issued notes creating an effective cash flow hedge against the foreign currency and interest rate movement
on the notes issued. The interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest to fixed rate interest are
designated as a cash flow hedge.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2006
2007
2007
Number of ordinary shares
US$’000

369,000,000
55,350,000

15,000,000
1,500,000

31,634
78,569

9,001
951

-

258,500,000

-

-

-

94,000,000
369,000,000

(1,998)
108,205

21,390
(2,120)
2,412
31,634

424,350,000

The company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income.
Note:
(a)

24

On October 4, 2006, the company consolidated every six ordinary shares into one ordinary share and subsequent subdivision of every one ordinary share in the share capital of the company into 100 ordinary shares (the “Share Split”)
pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise implemented in preparation for the listing on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.

HEDGING RESERVE
The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the effective portion of cash flow
hedges.
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REVENUE
Group

Revenue from engineering contracts
Charter hire income
Revenue from shipbuilding contracts

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

117,096
22,419
11,662
151,177

46,792
19,980
66,772
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Issued and paid up:
At the beginning of the year
Issue of share capital for cash
Issue of share capital pursuant to
the Restructuring Exercise [Note (a)]
Issue of share capital pursuant to
Initial Public Offering
Share capital issue expenses
Transfer from share premium account
At the end of the year

2006
US$’000
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Group

Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
Brokerage fees
Foreign exchange gain
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Sale of equipment
Negative goodwill written off
Others

27

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

21,686
283
2,381
1,549
2,018
230
28,147

2,000
356
1,052
52
50
102
3,602

FINANCE COSTS
Group

Interest expense on:
Bank loans
Bills payable
Finance leases
Other short-term loans
Bonds
Other

28

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

860
619
21
400
1,836
3,736

517
18
8
7
550

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group
2007
US$’000
Current tax
Overprovision in prior years
Deferred tax
Income tax expense for the year

1,916
389
2,305

2006
US$’000
464
(8)
382
838

Domestic income tax of the company is calculated at 18% (2006 : 20%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)
The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Group

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 18% (2006 : 20%)
Tax effect of share of results of associate and joint venture
Tax effect of items that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Deferred tax benefits not recognised
Overprovision of tax in prior years
Income exempted from tax
Non taxable items
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions
Others

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
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2,595
(75)
5
38
(8)
(1,814)
113
(16)
838

9,362
(301)
11
13
(6,569)
(1,080)
1,124
(255)
2,305

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
Group

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Directors’ fees
Directors’ remuneration:
- of the company
- of the subsidiaries
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ remuneration)
Cost of defined contribution plans included in staff costs
Net foreign exchange loss (gain)
Allowance for doubtful debts
Non audit fees:
- auditors of the company
- other auditors
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2006
US$’000

2007
US$’000

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

2,675
275

1,091
208

6,611
502
11,044
197
(283)
55

1,519
495
2,835
60
344
107

11
-

18
21
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the group’s net profit attributable to shareholders of the company for the
year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as follows:
Group

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the company (US$’000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (’000)
Basic earnings per share (in US cents)

2007

2006

49,669

12,129

395,538

280,482

12.56

4.32

There is no dilution effect in earnings per share in respect of share options as there were no shares under option
during and at the end of the year.
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COMMITMENTS
Group

Commitments to contracts for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

32

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

239,488

57,381

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The group as lessee
Group

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised as an expense in the year

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

452

100

At the balance sheet date, the group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which
fall due as follows:
Group

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

2007
US$’000

2006
US$’000

25,212
99,790
95,666
220,668

148
60
208
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for vessels which were acquired under sale and
leaseback transactions and certain of its office properties. Vessel leases are negotiated for an average term of eight
and ten years and rentals are fixed for an average of eight and ten years. Office properties leases are negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

On August 6, 2007, the group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Kreuz Shipbuilding & Engineering Pte
Ltd (formerly known as North Shipyard (Pte) Ltd) for cash consideration of S$10.3 million (equivalent to US$6.9
million). This transaction has been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting.
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the negative goodwill arising, are as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
US$’000

2007
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Bank and cash balances
Trade payables
Other payables
Income tax payable
Negative goodwill
Total consideration, satisfied by cash
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

2,374
33
388
2,545
62
1,697
(526)
(1,381)
(614)
4,578

Fair value
adjustments
US$’000

4,372
(29)
4,343

Fair value
US$’000

6,746
4
388
2,545
62
1,697
(526)
(1,381)
(614)
8,921
(2,018)
6,903

(6,903)
1,697
(5,206)

Kreuz Shipbuilding & Engineering Pte Ltd contributed US$14.2 million revenue and US$2.1 million to the group’s
profit before tax for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date. If the acquisition had
been completed on January 1, 2007, total group revenue for the year would have been US$155.7 million, and profit
for the year would have been US$50.4 million. In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the group had
Kreuz Shipbuilding & Engineering Pte Ltd been acquired at the beginning of the current reporting period, the
management has:
•

•

calculated depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment acquired on the basis of the
fair values arising in the initial accounting for the business combination rather than the carrying amounts
recognised in the pre-acquisition financial statements
based borrowing costs on the funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity position of the group after the
business combination
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business segments
In 2007, the group operates in three business segments - Offshore Engineering, Procurement, Construction,
Installation and Commissioning services (EPCIC), Offshore Marine support and Shipbuilding and repair. In 2006,
the group operated in the first two business segments only.
Principal activities are as follows:
Offshore EPCIC services

–

Offshore Marine support
Shipbuilding and repair

–
–

providing offshore engineering, procurement, construction, installation and
commissioning services
provision of offshore support services and offshore support vessels
building and repairing of offshore vessels

Segment revenue and expense: Segment revenue and expense are the operating revenue and expense reported
in the group’s profit and loss statement that are directly attributable to a segment and the relevant portion of such
revenue and expense that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to a segment.
Segment assets and liabilities: Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally
of operating receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, net of allowances and provisions.
Capital additions include the total cost incurred to acquire property, plant and equipment directly attributable to
the segment. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts payable and
accruals.
Inter-segment transfers: Segment revenue and expenses include transfers between business segments. Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.
In 2007, the group’s three business segments operate mainly in four geographical areas of Singapore, Malaysia,
Indonesia and Brunei.
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segmental information for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
Group

Results
Segment result
Unallocated income
Finance costs
Share of profit of associate
and joint venture
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Offshore
marine
support
US$’000

117,096
117,096

22,419
64,614
87,033

11,662
2,579
14,241

21,008

2,315

2,168

Shipbuilding
and repair Eliminations
US$’000
US$’000

(67,193)
(67,193)

Total
US$’000

151,177
151,177

25,491
28,583
(3,736)
1,673
52,011
(2,305)
49,706

Group
Offshore
EPCIC
services
US$’000

Offshore
marine
support
US$’000

46,743
679

42,964
1,713

1,186
129

135,909

92,624

22,297

250,830
3,698
4,448
111,064
370,040

46,213

34,193

5,266

85,672
106,889
192,561

Shipbuilding
and repair
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Total
US$’000

1,395
154

92,288
2,675

FY 2007
Other information
Capital additions
Depreciation
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets
Interest in associate
Interest in joint venture
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

FY 2007
Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

Offshore
EPCIC
services
US$’000
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Offshore
EPCIC services
US$’000

Group
Offshore
marine support
Eliminations
US$’000
US$’000

Total
US$’000

FY 2006
Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue
Results
Segment result
Unallocated income
Finance costs
Share of profit of associate
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

46,792
46,792

19,980
54,540
74,520

10,460

1,548

Offshore
EPCIC services
US$’000

(54,540)
(54,540)

66,772
66,772

12,008
1,143
(550)
377
12,978
(838)
12,140

Group
Offshore
marine support
Others
US$’000
US$’000

Total
US$’000

FY 2006
Other information
Capital additions
Depreciation
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets
Interest in associate
Interest in joint venture
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

1,651
151

31,739
913

427
27

33,817
1,091

22,732

47,461

70,193
2,855
1,800
16,152
91,000

8,757

17,362

26,119
15,836
41,955
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Geographical Segments
Capital
expenditure (2)
US$’000

Revenue (1)
US$’000

Assets (2)
US$’000

19,531
50,938
19,082
50,834
10,792
151,177

146,487
183,321
6,220
34,012
370,040

19,987
71,581
402
318
92,288

11,791
40,543
6,899
7,539
66,772

54,468
35,395
1,137
91,000

29,240
4,312
265
33,817

FY 2006
Singapore
Malaysia
Indonesia
Others

35

(1)

Analysis of the group’s sales is by geographical location of customer, irrespective of the origin of the work/services.

(2)

Analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to the property, plant and equipment analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The following significant events took place subsequent to December 31, 2007:
(i)

The group incorporated a new subsidiary company in Brunei, Swiber Offshore (B) Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary company with an authorised share capital of B$1,000,000 and initial issued and paid up share
capital of B$50,000 comprising 50,000 shares of B$1 each. The principal activity of the subsidiary is to carry
out offshore vessels chartering and onshore and offshore EPCIC works in the oil and gas industry.

(ii)

The group incorporated a 51% joint venture company in Brunei, Swiber Rahaman Sdn Bhd, with an authorised
share capital of B$1,000,000 and initial issued and paid up share capital of B$50,000 comprising 50,000
shares of B$1 each. The principal activity of the joint venture is to carry out offshore vessels chartering and
onshore and offshore EPCIC works in the oil and gas industry.
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FY 2007

STATEMENT OF DI R ECT O RS

In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial statements of the group and the balance sheet and statement of
changes in equity of the company as set out on pages 51 to 95 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the group and of the company as at December 31, 2007, and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the group and changes in equity of the company for the financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there
are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due.

Goh Kim Teck, Raymond

Wong Chin Sing, Francis

March 18, 2008

STATI STI CS OF SHAREHO LDINGS
as at 20 March 2008

Total no. of issued shares excluding treasury shares
Total no. of treasury shares
Class of shares
Voting rights

:
:
:
:

424,350,000
Nil
Ordinary share
One vote per share

No. of
Shareholders

%

No. of shares

%

1 - 999
1,000 - 10,000
10,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 and above
Total

5
1,834
337
18
2,194

0.23
83.59
15.36
0.82
100.00

1,650
7,738,210
19,984,000
396,626,140
424,350,000

0.00
1.82
4.71
93.47
100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
No.

Name

No.of shares

%

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD
SWISSCO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
MERRILL LYNCH (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
JEAN PERS
YEO CHEE NENG
HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD
GOH KIM TECK
HENDRICK EDDY PURNOMO
DBSN SERVICES PTE LTD
DB NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
RAFFLES NOMINEES PTE LTD
HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD
NITISH GUPTA
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD
MAYBAN NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (SINGAPORE) SECURITIES PTE LTD
PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD
UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD
WORRALL PETER JOHN
Total

71,535,550
71,176,705
38,000,000
35,737,224
35,000,000
30,000,000
23,017,300
22,666,667
20,000,000
13,065,372
7,367,000
5,806,011
5,228,000
5,000,000
4,495,546
4,000,000
3,511,765
1,019,000
961,000
960,000
398,547,140

16.86
16.77
8.95
8.42
8.25
7.07
5.42
5.34
4.71
3.08
1.74
1.37
1.23
1.18
1.06
0.94
0.83
0.24
0.23
0.23
93.92

96/97

Size of shareholdings

SWIBER ANNUAL REPORT 2007

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

STATI STI CS OF SHAREHO LDIN GS
as at 20 March 2008

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Substantial shareholders of the Company (as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders) as at 20 March 2008:

Direct Interest
Name

Indirect Interest

No. of shares

%

No. of shares

Goh Kim Teck

61,666,667

14.53%1

-

-

Jean Pers

35,000,000

8.25%

-

-

-

-

2

Yeo Chee Neng

35,000,000

8.25%

Swissco International Limited

%

38,000,000

8.95%

-

JPMorgan Chase & Co. and its affiliates

-

-

37,532,000

8.84%3

-

Pang Yoke Min

-

-

59,627,000

14.05%4

Yeo Holdings Private Limited

-

-

38,000,000

8.95%5

Yeo Chong Lin

-

-

38,000,000

8.95%6

Yeo Kian Teong Alex

-

-

38,000,000

8.95%7

Notes:
1

Includes 35,000,000 shares registered in the name of Merrill & Lynch (Singapore) Pte Ltd and 4,000,000 registered in the name of
Mayban Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd, beneficially held in the name of Goh Kim Teck.

2

Registered in the name of Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte Ltd, beneficially held in the name of Yeo Chee Neng.

3

Registered in the names of HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd (041-551110-085), HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd
(141-456871-085), DBS Nominees Pte Ltd a/c The Bank of New York Brussels, Raffles Nominees (Pte) Ltd, Japan Trustee Services
Bank, Ltd and Citibank Noms Singapore Pte. Ltd. FAO JPMSL-8115150019.

4

Registered in the name of Citibank Nominees.

5

Yeo Holdings Private Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of Swiber Holdings Limited (“Company”) through its
interests in Swissco International Limited by virtue of Section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap 50. (“Act”).

6

Yeo Holdings Private Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company through its interest in Swissco International
Limited by virtue of Section 7 of the Act. By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Mr Yeo Chong Lin is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company through his interest in Yeo Holdings Private Limited.

7

Yeo Holdings Private Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company through its interests in Swissco International
Limited by virtue of Section 7 of the Act. By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Mr Yeo Kian Teong Alex is deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company through his interests in Yeo Holdings Private Limited.

FREE FLOAT
As at 20 March 2008, the percentage of shareholdings of the Company held in the hands of the public was more than
10 percent and therefore Rule 723 of the Listing Manual is complied with.

NOTI CE OF ANNUAL GEN ERAL M EET ING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Swiber Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held
at 12 International Business Park, #03-02 Cyberhub@IBP, Singapore 609920, on Wednesday, 30 April 2008 at 1.00 p.m. for
the following purposes:

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
(Resolution 1)

2.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 93 of the Articles of Association of the Company:
Mr Jean Pers
Mr Francis Wong Chin Sing
Mr Yeo Jeu Nam

(Resolution 2)
(Resolution 3)
(Resolution 4)

Mr Francis Wong Chin Sing will, upon re-election as Director of the Company, remain as member of the Audit
Committee.
Mr Yeo Jeu Nam will, upon re-election as Director of the Company, remain as Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and member of the Audit and Nominating Committees and will be considered independent for the
purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of US$275,000 for the year ended 31 December 2007.

(Resolution 5)

4.

To re-appoint Messrs Deloitte & Touche as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.
(Resolution 6)

5.

To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any
modifications:
6.

Authority to allot and issue shares up to fifty per cent. (50%) of issued capital
“That, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and Rule 806(2) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “Listing Manual”), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to:(a)

allot and issue shares in the Company; and

(b)

issue convertible securities and any shares in the Company pursuant to convertible securities

(whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes
and to such persons as the Directors shall in their absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the aggregate number
of shares (including any shares to be issued pursuant to the convertible securities) in the Company to be issued
pursuant to such authority shall not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total number of issued shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company for the time being and that the aggregate number of shares in the Company to
be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to the then existing shareholders of the Company will not exceed twenty
per cent. (20%) of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company for the time being.
Unless prior shareholder approval is required under the Listing Manual, an issue of treasury shares will not require
further shareholders’ approval, and will not be included in the aforementioned limits. Unless revoked or varied by
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the Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue in full force until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting is required by law to be
held, whichever is earlier, except that the Directors shall be authorised to allot and issue new shares pursuant to the
convertible securities notwithstanding that such authority has ceased.
For the purposes of this Resolution and Rule 806(3) of the Listing Manual, the total number of issued shares excluding
treasury shares is based on the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company at the time
this Resolution is passed after adjusting for:-

7.

(i)

new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities;

(ii)

new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the
time of the passing of this Resolution, provided the options or awards were granted in compliance with the
rules of the Listing Manual; and

(iii)

any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares.”
[See Explanatory Note (i)]

(Resolution 7)

Authority to grant options and issue shares under the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme
“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to offer and grant options in accordance with the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
and to issue such shares as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options granted under the
Scheme provided always that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed
fifteen per cent. (15%) of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to
time.”
[See Explanatory Note (ii)]
(Resolution 8)

8.

Authority to allot and issue shares under Swiber Performance Share Plan
“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to allot and issue from time to time such shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be
issued pursuant to the Swiber Performance Share Plan provided always that the aggregate number of shares to be
issued pursuant to the Swiber Performance Share Plan shall not exceed fifteen per cent. (15%) of the total number
of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to time”
[See Explanatory Note (iii)]
(Resolution 9)

By Order of the Board

Lee Bee Fong
Tan Ping Ping
Company Secretaries
Singapore, 15 April 2008

NOTI CE OF ANNUAL GEN ERAL M EET ING

The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above Meeting
until the date of the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the Company. The
aggregate number of shares (including any shares issued pursuant to the convertible securities) which the Directors may allot and
issue under this Resolution will not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total number of issued share excluding treasury shares (as
defined in Resolution 7) of the Company. For issues of shares other than on a pro rata basis to all shareholders, the aggregate
number of shares to be issued will not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury
shares (as defined in Resolution 7) of the Company. This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied at a general meeting,
expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier. However, notwithstanding the cessation of this authority, the Directors
are empowered to issue shares pursuant to any convertible securities issued under this authority.

(ii)

The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, to grant options and
to allot and issue shares upon the exercise of such options in accordance with the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme.

(iii)

The Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to allot and issue
shares in accordance with the Swiber Performance Share Plan.

Notes:
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2.

If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of its duly authorised officer or attorney.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 12 International Business Park,
Cyberhub@IBP, #04-01, Singapore 609920 not less than forty-eight hours (48) before the time for holding the Annual General
Meeting.
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PROX Y F ORM

IMPORTANT:
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy
Swiber Holdings Limited shares, the Annual Report is
forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved
Nominees and is sent FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

SWIBER HOLDINGS LIMITED

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and
shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or
purported to be used by them.

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 200414721N)

I/We

(Name)

of

(Address)

being a member/members of Swiber Holdings Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint:

Name

Address

NRIC/Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

Address

NRIC/Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name

as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company (the “Meeting”) to be
held at 12 International Business Park, #03-02 Cyberhub@IBP, Singapore 609920, on Wednesday, 30 April 2008, at 1.00 p.m. and at any
adjournment thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as indicated
hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion, as he/they
will on any matter arising at the Meeting.
No.

Resolutions Relating to:

For

1.

Directors’ Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007

2.

Re-election of Mr Jean Pers

3.

Re-election of Mr Francis Wong Chin Sing

4.

Re-election of Mr Yeo Jeu Nam

5.

Approval of Directors’ fees

6.

Re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte & Touche as Auditors

7.

Authority to allot and issue shares pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50

8.

Authority to grant options and issue shares under the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme

9.

Authority to allot and issue shares under the Swiber Performance Share Plan

Total No. of Shares
Dated this

day of

Against

No. of Shares

2008.
In CDP Register
In Register of Members

Signature(s) of Member(s)
or, Common Seal of Corporate Member

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

NOTES
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his
stead.

2.

Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his holding
(expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

3.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4.

A member should insert the total number of shares held. If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository
Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 of Singapore), he should insert that number of shares. If the
member has shares registered in his name in the Register of Members of the Company, he should insert that number of shares. If the
member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register and registered in his name in the Register of Members, he
should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all shares held
by the member.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 12 International Business Park,
Cyberhub@IBP, #04-01, Singapore 609920, not less than 48 hours before the time set for the Meeting.

6.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing.
Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal
or under the hand of its attorney or a duly authorised officer.

7.

Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the power of attorney or a duly
certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which the
instrument may be treated as invalid.

GENERAL:
The Company shall be entitled to reject a proxy form which is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where the true intentions of
the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified on the proxy form. In addition, in the case of shares
entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject a proxy form if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares
entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The
Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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